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Directors and Senior Management
EERBEEEAS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 67, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He is
responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business
strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has

more than 44 vears' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 65, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a co-
founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and administration of
the Group. He has more than 44 years' experience in the plastics industry and he was
awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 58, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is in
charge of the R&D centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong
was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems
Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D
degree in Chemical Engineering and is also a Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a
corporate member of The Institution of Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked for two multinational chemical companies

prior to taking up a lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wah, aged 63, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr Lai holds
a Master of Arts degree and is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law
Society of England and Wales and the Law Society of Australian Capital Territory. He has
been practicing law for over 30 years. He is also an associate of the Hong Kong Institute
of Arbitrators, a Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, Treasurer and Manager of a secondary school, Manager of

another secondary school and Manager of a primary school in Hong Kong.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 56, is responsible for credit control of the Group. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She
joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Directors. She has more than 29 vears' experience in plastic materials trading.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 49, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department, Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group and the
General Manager (Acting) of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He is responsible
for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology and key accounts in the
Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He also holds a
Master of Engineering Management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He
joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has

over 25 years' experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 63, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences
and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants,

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 64, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic Material Ltd.
He has more than 37 years' experience in plastic trading. He was formerly a lecturer of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic University. He is now the Honorary
Lifetime Chairman of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers Association, President of Hong
Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Executive President of The Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of Hong Kong Plastics Technology
Centre and Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Brands Protection Alliance. He has also

been awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEREEEEAS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 44, is the assistant to Chairman of an investment company. He

had been the Vice President - Finance for Hong Kong and China Gas Investment Limited,
a subsidiary of the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (B&FREXRER A
7)), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and was responsible
for the overall financial management of its joint ventures in the People's Republic of
China. Mr Ching had also been executive director, finance director, company secretary
and qualified accountant of the Company. He has more than 22 years of experience
in auditing, finance and accounting. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006 respectively. Mr
Ching is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the American

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 59, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co,
Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Ltd., and is responsible for
the overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ben Ng
holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director
of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 33 years' experience
in plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ben Ng has held several key
positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and

product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 43, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and
marketing in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry
from The University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from
the University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 20 years’

experience in sales & marketing.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 41, is the Chief Financial officer and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of Hong
Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“FCCA”") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“FCPA"). He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder
("CFA") and a Certified Financial Risk Manager (“FRM"). He has over |8 years'
experience in auditing, finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury,

administration and human resources management of the Group.

Mr HUI Yan Kit, Sam, aged 41, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches
and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai and other cities in Eastern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from University of Toronto. He joined the
Group in 1998 and has over 16 years' experience in business management, sales &
marketing. Mr Hui Yan Kit, Sam is the son of Mr Hui Sai Chung and the brother of Mr Hui
Yan Lung, Geoffrey.

Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 40, is the General Manager of Dongguan Ngai
Hing Plastic Materials Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Guangdong and
other cities in Southem China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in
Economics) from Queen’s University. He joined the Group in 2004 and has over |4 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr Hui Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the

son of Mr Hui Sai Chung and the brother of Mr Hui Yan Kit, Sam.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

I hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (“the
Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 30th June
2014. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of HK$1,757,296,000
(2013: HK$1,868,990,000) and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$3,241,000 (2013: HK$22,059,000). Eamings per share for the year were HKO0.88 cents
(2013: HK5.97 cents). To retain sufficient capital for future business development, the

Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the period under review, total turnover has dropped as a result of weak demand
in Mainland China and Europe, as well as the Group's strategy to gradually shift its focus
on sales of products with higher gross profit margins. For the year ended 30th June 2014,
the Group's total turnover was HK$1,757,296,000, representing a year-on-year drop
of 6%. The Group has implemented new sales strategies aiming at securing customers
who are able to generate higher gross profit margins and at the same time reducing the
number of orders with relatively lower profit margins, so the sales volume of products has
only decreased by 3% over the same period last year. The Group's gross profit margin
has also reflected the transformation strategy. Despite the slight tumover decrease, total
gross profit has increased by 4% to HK$191,928,000, while gross profit margin has also

increased from 9.8% in the same period last year to 10.9%.

Affected by increasing inflation and the minimum wage policy, the Group's operating
costs rose during the period under review, with labour costs showing the highest increase.
Packaging and transportation costs also climbed by single digits year-on-year. Other net
gains dropped during the year, including revaluation gain of investment properties and
unrealised loss of forward foreign exchange contracts. Profit attributable to equity holders
dropped by 85% to HK$3,24 1,000 (2013: HK$22,059,000). Basic earnings per share were
HKO.88 cents (2013: HK5.97 cents).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Among the three major businesses of the Group, it has continued to implement its sales
transformation strategy to focus on national and international high gross profit margins
customers for its colorant, pigment and compounded plastic resin business segment.
Turnover of this business segment dropped by 6% year-on-year to HK$375,897,000, in
line with expectations. The Group's Shanghai subsidiary showed the most encouraging
performance. Apart from strengthening the close cooperation with existing food packaging
and automobile customers, the Group has also capitalised on its technological advantage
and excellent after-sales services to penetrate markets with higher entry barriers and
technology requirements. These markets include international toy, automobile, electronic
product and personal healthcare brands, to cater for the demand of domestic and
internationally renowned customers and contributed promising profit to the Group. As a
result, tumover of the Shanghai subsidiary has increased by 7% to HK$180,639,000 year-
on-year. Moreover, the Group has started providing decorative construction materials for
customers in Western and Northern China to enhance its market penetration in these
areas. Despite the decline in overall domestic demand and rising labour costs in Mainland
China, the Group has continued to develop products with high gross profit margins while
strictly controlling its costs. Consequently, gross profit margin has increased by three
percentage points and profit before taxation was HK$46,917,000, similar to that of last

year.

The economies in the U.S. and particularly in Europe have yet to recover fully from
turbulence and the volatility of the RMB exchange rate affected customers’ confidence
in procurement. Thus turnover of the Group's engineering plastics business, which
targets domestic along with European and the U.S. export customers, dropped by 12%
to HK$187,274,000 when compared to the same period last year. During the year,
the Group has continued to transform this business segment with direct export its
plastics products to overseas markets. As the transformation is still in the investment
stage, it has yet to bring a substantial profit contribution to the Group during the year.
Therefore, profit before taxation of this business segment has recorded a decline of 65%.
Nevertheless, the Group's subsidiaries in Shanghai and Dongguan achieved a satisfactory
business performance with turnover up 4% and 5% respectively and gross profit up 7%
and 20% year-on-year respectively, thus leading to an increase of 2% in gross profit in this
segment. Full operation of the new production lines in Shanghai has not only boosted
the Group's overall operational efficiency, but its leading-edge product technology has
also enhanced its competitive advantage, meeting the increasingly stringent requirements
of Mainland and overseas customers for product quality. With the steady business
transformation and expansion of its customer base in Southern and Eastern China, this

business segment is expected to gradually bring profit contribution to the Group.

EREBHNRRIN(E

ES Iz 16 )
RASEM=KEKT  Z26H - eHREN
EBEERTHEZEMREBRENEEFNR
PRENHEERE Lo BEERRETRR
DZINE3ISGT000ET ERRBFATE
Ho B FESABRRASTSARE B
HERBRMBERTERFPNEREERF
oh BE—SFBERTES RRTNEER
B 2BEAMERS  RMAKEZENT
% BEBERNE . AE  BEFEMNUREA
REZRE RRBEARBERNGERER
MER BASESRUBHNEMNER B
WEBRARMEERERFLABTHIZELERE
180,639,000/ 7T » R - RETBFERETS
MEERERB LA EE  LRBBZTE
EPRUEMARENS - REXBENBES
KTRBRUARBRATRATE EANTE K
SEBERRENEMURBREZEHIKA
EFRGUSE=HEE2HER  BRFATEF
8%1546,917,000/8 7T * HAFIHE

ERFHEBELARP AT ENTRBRE
B ARELEDAZEEE  NEFAAR
BEXREZEEFPREBRED  SFHHREF
RELETRED 2T 2% 1872740007 T °
FR AEBEEBETERER  BRHOE
THBBRHERERIINTS  EHREEE
EEABRRESR  ARFARERATEE
TRABNBIER - WGREHAENEEE D
ZATHZEE - EAKBEUN LB RRZH
DRRAINEBRESARE D HBOEERE
NAEEENZERBED ZH - EFTMEFE
MEAZERBED 2=+ S HNER
TABERZ2Z - BEUR EBNMAEESN 2
ARE  HETEERALSERENEEN
o HEAHERBRMENERREZED - N
REBAIELRBHEREENTR - A
EXBERSBEURTEERANERRE
ROEPH  BHEELAEETRATER -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Owing to its higher susceptibility to changes in the market environment, the plastics
trading business recorded a tumover of HK$1,191,702,000, a decrease of 5% as compared
to the corresponding period last year. Nevertheless, the Group has stood out from the
highly competitive market by the proportionate increase of its products with high gross
profit margins. Gross profit margin rose by one percentage point. Excluding unrealised
loss on forward foreign exchange contracts, loss attributable to equity holders further
narrowed to HK$26,643,000. Among the sales offices in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
the sales office in Tianjin has achieved the best results by contributing a turover of more
than HK$21,000,000 to the Group during the year, more than doubling the increase as
compared to the same period last year. Moreover, the Chongging sales office targeting the
Western China market opened in 2013 has developed in line with expectations. In light of
the persistent strong demand in the Mainland China market, in addition to its presence in
Xiamen, the Group will continue to expand its points of sale in coastal and inland areas,
believing that the strategic national sales network and diverse product mix enable the

Group to gain market share in various regions.

PROSPECTS

Although the economic recovery of European countries has been slower than expected,
the steady growth in the U.S. economy still facilitated China’s export growth, so the
management believes that the global economy will grow steadily and the prices of oil
and plastic will continue to stabilise. Besides, the latest positive economic data in the U.S,
and stabilisation of RMB exchange rate in July and August, uncertainties in the market are
gradually subsiding, which enables the Group to speed up business transformation and

consolidate overall profitability.

In respect to its colorant, pigments and compounded plastic resin business segment,
through the close ties with the International Colour Alliance, the Group has expanded
the customer base with the collaboration with interationally-renowned brands in the
toy, personal healthcare products, automobile parts and electronic products sectors in
recent years. Looking ahead, the Group will enhance the smooth transition of its business
by continuing to use its leading technology to establish a long-term relationship with

international brands with higher gross profit margins.

As for the engineering plastics business, on top of working with existing customers, the
Group will communicate overseas manufacturers directly to increase negotiating leverage
and overall margins. It will also strive to find export customers with strong potential. In the
future, the Group will develop new markets and transition to higher gross profit products
and a more diverse customer base in order to reduce the reliance on a single market and

balance the income mix.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

PROSPECTS (Continued)

Regarding the plastics trading business, the Group will accelerate the expansion of its
domestic sales network, continuing its successful strategy in Eastern and Southemn China
from the existing points of sales in Tianjin and Chongging to Northern, Central and
Western China. The Group will also evaluate appropriate locations in the Fujian coastal
area to expand its sales and services capabilities. These efforts can create synergies with
the existing factory in Xiamen, enabling the Group to more effectively tap the Eastern

China region with strong growth potential and further enlarge its domestic market share.

In the area of cost controls, rising labor costs in Mainland China remain as one of
the challenges the Group faces in the business operation. However, with effective
implementation of automation, the Group has been reducing related costs and the
resulting pressure on operational expenses. In addition, with the government policy
of setting up Shanghai Free Trade Zone and the proposed cross-border financing

arrangement, the Group s set to further lower the finance cost.

Overall, in its strategy and operations, the Group'’s outstanding and professional
management team will adhere to its prudent financial management policy and pragmatic
and aggressive business direction. It will also adjust its business strategies in an appropriate
and timely fashion, so as to capture the business opportunities in the future and generate

satisfactory returns to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and banking
facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2014 the Group has available
aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$575,203,000, of which approximately
HK$304,749,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate guarantees issued by
the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties in the PRC and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes 16, 17 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash and bank balances as at 30th June
2014 amounted to approximately HK$97,278,000. The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th
June 2014 was approximately 62%, based on the total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$294,828,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$471,859,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities are

disclosed in Notes 32 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its exchange

risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.

At 30th June 2014, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward
contracts in order to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its

operations as follows:

Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

MERR
AEBZERERBIEFIERET  ARY
RET - AEBNRBIBUAXTHE - A&
B RZYERER KRB ERLE B HEY
IMERNEREXRDAR

REBEETRZMNERR - REBEETUINE
EHEN -N-_F-MENA=ZTH RHER
ZBRBRR RN

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Sell HK dollars for US dollars HEBTUEAZET 1,131,000 1,518,114
Sell US dollars for HK dollars HEETUEAET 15,600 8,870
Sell US dollars for Renminbi HEETUEAARE 1,297,140 653,640

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2014, the Group had approximately 713 full-time employees. The
Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual employees
and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is geared to the
profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an incentive to motivate its
employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social
or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its

employees depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

l, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my fellow
directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group will, as
always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive for its long-term development
and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more promising results in the

coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th September 2014
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BO—— e —— Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the ESeENREAE S UE A A=TAL

year ended 30th June 2014, FEZHEEREEZABERE -
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF IEXBREHBEE D 2 KERR
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its ~ ARRZ T EXBKARERR X EWBA
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. Al F BEBRIEN GRS B RRM T3S -

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in Note 5 to ARBRHHED o RERBDTHRNGEH
the consolidated financial statements. BBmKMEES

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS ES Pl
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement AEREBEHNF 4 BEzRalaR -
on page 4.

ekt

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share, EEQCR_T-MFENA-AREFHRKRE
totalling HK$3,692,000, which was paid on 2nd April 2014. B 1.0l - A ££3,692,000 87T °

2]}

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend. R EARERPRE -

RESERVES &

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out AEERARAFARELEZBFBFHRGS
in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. SRR MG 28 o

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME - BERRE

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in AEBERAFENE  BERSB L EHHR
Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements. e BRAMT 16

SHARE CAPITAL IR

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the ARAZBRAEHFEHEN G M BREMT
consolidated financial statements. 27 °

I — .
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2014, the reserves of the Company available for distribution, comprising
the contributed surplus and retained eamings, amounted to approximately HK$65,187,000
(2013: HK$69,171,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the realisable value of the company's
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws and there
was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 153.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS BRE

On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the ~ ARBZBRRR-ZZ_F+-_HARBERHKT
“Scheme”). Under the terms of the Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite BREEI([FERERTE]) - REBERE 2
Directors and employees of the Group to take up options (the “Share Options”) to 2R RGN EEeNRERFARECE
subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated EREEBEMNARBALDRRN < BkE(TE
therein. Details of the movements of Share Options granted under the Scheme during the BRiE]) - REERETERL  BRER_-Z

year and outstanding as at 30th June 2014 are as follows: —MERA=TARFAZEHNT
Number of Share Options
BREZRGEA

Granted  Exercised Lapsed

Exercise  Beginning during during during End of

Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year the year
R BH AT EAR T%E £ FRRY  FRTE FR&L £X
Other continuous
contract employees
BENANESR
3th February 2008 [3th February 2009 HK$0.78 500,000 - - 500,00 -
ZZTNE to 12th February 2014 0787
A=A SFENECATERE
“E-mE-AT-A
I3th February 2008 I3th February 2010 HK$0.78 500,000 - - 500,00 -
“ZTN\E to 12th February 2014 07887
“At=H “E-ZRE_At=HE
“2-ME-A+-A
I3th February 2008 I3th February 2011 HK$0.78 500,000 - — 500,00 —
—ZEN\F to 12th February 2014 078 87T
—At=H “T——%-f1+=RZE
“E-ME-A+=A
1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 -
.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme (the

“New Scheme") and terminated the Scheme. Under the terms of the New Scheme, the

Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options

to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated

therein,

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Purpose
The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options

to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an offer to take up Share
Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix Il of the circular issued by the
Company on 18th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share Option
may be granted under the new Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The total number
of shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the date of the annual
report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as of
that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other option
schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any |2-month

period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

()

)

i)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors may
in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire more
than 10 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and accepted by

the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a period
of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$ 1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange") daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant
of a Share Option, (i) the average price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 0 years between 22nd
November 2012 and 2Ist November 2022 to offer the grant of an option to any
qualifying participants.

No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2014 are set out in Note

35 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

Mr LAl Kam Wah (Deputy Managing Director)

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr NG Chi Ming

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr CHAN Dit Lung *

Mr CHING Yu Lung *

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Madam LIU Sau Lai and Mr CHING Yu Lung retire by rotation in
accordance with clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and long-
term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels,
the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-
term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an equity component that
is designed to align the long-term interest of management with those of shareholders.
The remuneration package comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary

bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee meetings.

The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2014, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2014
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Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BRRAEZA D AROEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Directors B PN £ TEER REER HigEz
Mr HUI Sai Chung Faueisles Long positions #F & 15,787,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B A Long positions F & 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAEBLLT Long positions #F & 1,423,000 — — @)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Notes:

@

©

5 22 Annual Report-4 B # & 2013/2014

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a company in
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 6,000,000
shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai Chung,
Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable

preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow Company
Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by
Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI Kwok Kwong.
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of

no par value in Evergrow.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held
196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2014, are as follows:

BEERRETHRAEBRARTDR
HEMBEBIEREARESZ
BER/RAREE)

Bzt

@)

ZERIP 2 196,721,500 JyE Good Benefit
Limited ([ Good Benefit]) # % ° Ever Win
Limited ([ Ever Win])# %8 Good Benefit B9 2
P+ A2 — (MR () o tEah - 6,000,000
PR R 15 B8 Ever Win #3555 ©

Ever WinBREE | 17Tz LA 50,001 B
AR ERES - FHRAERERBS D
R Ever Win AREE BT A SR ERE
FERAR 33,957 R 5 IR o

% % K 21967215008 T i Good
Benefit$ A& ° Evergrow Company Limited
(TEvergrow])#78 Good Benefit &2 2+
A —# s (MR (o))  1edh - 2,082,000 B 17
F Evergrow B H5A ©

Evergrow & R E & | 11 7T 2 & 8 % 17 50,000
BREFELEERE FEAXEERES
Evergrow AR EEENA LR EEELRH
30,823 % °

B £ Good Benefit (AT —WF A=
BEBADT 196721 500 AR ) RAZ B
BT

Number Percentage

of shares of holding

Name of Directors BEENE BR#BEE BERBEAL
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaudiyts 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong SRS 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BABLL 80 08%
Others Hity 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

As at 30th June 2014, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred
shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an option granted

to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred

= —— ~ Report of the Directors
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PEENBRRAREREEET R

il #% 2 8 ¥ 2 % FNgai Hing (International)

shares. Company Limited FI 8 B 1 B RERT R
ZFEIRHE
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
REERREECEROEE
Personal Other
interests interests
Name of Directors EEps BARESR Hipfgs
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eautbates 200,000 50,000())
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong EREbbtes 200,000 50,000(ii)
Notes: Bz

(i) These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of the
Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at 30th June
2014, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,

(@)  at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b)  none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the

Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2014, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company's
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief executives as disclosed

above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major suppliers are

as follows:
The largest supplier 22%
Five largest suppliers combined 59%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers is less
than 10% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2014 and therefore no

additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the

major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors and the
Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It also reviews
the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The
Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr HO
Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the

annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2014 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public as at the date of this report.
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ESERE

AUDITOR L

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires and, ARBRRCHEEAKEGHMEBAE

being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. %o BREMERERENCERBEERE
E% o

On behalf of the Board HKEEFE

HUI Sai Chung Y

Chairman FrtEE

Hong Kong, 25th September 2014 B _T-MENAZTAR




Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices
and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management throughout the
growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises on maintaining and

carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended 30th June 2014, except for

the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.| of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this annual report, the board
(the “Board") of directors (the "Directors”) of the Company has not appointed any
individual to be the chief executive. The roles of the chief executive have been performed
collectively by all the executive Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The
Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when it thinks

appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors confirmed they have

complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEELRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition

of executive and non-executive Directors. There is no financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship between Board members. The Board conducts meetings on

a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the

Board held a total of four regular board meetings, nine ad-hoc board meetings and one

general meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

Exg
EERMN EESEHAREZLELY
AREMEZEABYENRTONER  ME
PHOTEREFHPTEZNESTRTOE -
EZENB AV EEMME BE  KEX
H@iﬁ/ﬁ@Z@%°%$@R*%ﬁE¥
ERARRIERTLARTER RER
§$Eé%$ﬂﬁmm$§ 28 W%

out below: NEEEgRR—RRRAG - EZCEANK
ESHREHBNT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings  Attendance %5 Attendance BR3E  Attendance
Attendants HEE plgRs HERE gERB  HERB  AERE HERE
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) AL () 4 4 9 9
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong TR E
(Deputy Chairman and (Bl EE#
Managing Director) EFmr) 4 4 9 9
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony FEELT
(Vice Chairman) (BIEfE) 4 4 9 9
Mr LAI Kam Wah PRERL
(Deputy Managing Director) (GIEE#E) 4 4 9 9 | |
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBLL 4 4 9 9 | |
Mr NG Chi Ming RERLE 4 3 9 7 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE :
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fREEE 4 4 9 0 ! |
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRikEE LA 4 4 9 0 | |
Mr CHING Yu Lung EmEELE 4 4 9 0 | |

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the Board

and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-third of its members

comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent non-

executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or financial

management expertise. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6

to the annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and

qualifications.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance
(Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent non-

executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive Directors
and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its approval. The principal

functions of the Board are:

J to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and set

the objectives of the management;

. to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

. to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

0 to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30th June 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2014, the members
of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new
and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2014, have applied them consistently with
previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made are prudent and

reasonable.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEEGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements (Continued)

During the year ended 30th June 2014, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG
Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 39 to 40.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr HUI Sai Chung, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying,
Anthony, Mr LAl Kam Wah, Madam LIU Sau Lai, Mr NG Chi Ming, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul,
Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial to the Company in their
respective fields, including attending seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered
by professional bodies and self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills

5o as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all Directors for
their continuous professional development. During the year ended 30th June 2014 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has arranged to provide the Directors

with briefing on the amendments to the Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities of the
Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been complied with the

CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Composition

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) was

EEELRE

REZES

AREMREZES ( [REZE2] ) R

established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in accordance with CE = AT ARBER AR ER
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee consists of all BESEKY  REZESHZBEYIEH
independent non-executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and TESk—EBHTESHEK - HAKKRLE
attendance record of the Nomination Committee are as follows: fegran T
Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HESBERYERE HE=R
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) EELE (FEELE) 313 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRiXEESE 4 313 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngELE 3/3 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung At B 4 313 100%
Role and Function HARBE
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and REZEGAATHRIESENEE A
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular BERdEse (BRI - ABL&R) - U5t
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; THEREEMESSREER : BAEG

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee would review the Board's composition from time to time where Board
diversity would be considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 30th June 2014 to review the structure, size and composition (including the

skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEEGRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee consists
of all independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of

the Audit Committee are as follows:

EREES
RRBRIBH T2 RERRE 2 AR BINE

REEQ([BRZEg )2 BREEEEN_F

—ZHZRZTRBEH - BERZECHR2E
BIUFRTEFEN - EREEGZAKRE
RN

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESERYERE HE=R

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) EELE (ZFEELE) 3/3 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIBER & 313 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung = 33 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations
set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given below are the main duties of the
Audit Committee:

(@)  to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and

scope of the audit;
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Corporate Governance Report

ERERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) EREESH)
Role and Function (Continued) AERBE (&)
() to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the  EREFERIX+FERFEHEHREX

Board, focusing particularly on: RISETTER - RIS TH S5 -

() any changes in accounting policies and practices; () EFRRREBOEMEL

(i) major judgmental areas; iy FREEFEHNM, ;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit; (iy ABEZMLRNEAFE

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications; (v) FESENRIREMREZR

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; BT EAMER

—
<
=

d

(vi)  compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial Vi) BTFETRRECEBRERSE
reporting; and HYER © &

(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters d) (WAERB EEEEIESHERT)

the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where AmAERIEELNRABENREE
necessary). B A RAERIINEZ A% L 5t im ) $
15 o
For the year ended 30th June 2014, the Audit Committee met three times, in particular, ~ RBE-T—NFRNA=1THIFE  EZZ
to review and discuss the followings: BELRIT=ZREH  UBHBEARGARUAT
£R

+  the auditing and financial reporting matters; s RERMBBREEE

0 the appointment of external auditor; * ZEIMNBREAN

0 the establishment of internal control system; and O B NRERRL

. the interim results and the annual financial statements. J PHRERFEMB®RE

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and all B EeFMK 8 AR HlH Mz e &
senior staff of the Group. AEERMERRBERRER -
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EEEGRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee") in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors and
an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

FHZEES

AR BRIRE P72 R P BETE 2 AR Rl A
MEEe((FMREe ) CBEREDR -
——HZA-t+ABEH - FMEREEH={
BUFRATES R —MUATEFAK - HFHZ
Be sl kb FrRsmT

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HESBRY,ERE HE=R
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) EELE (FEELE) 313 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung PRIKBER & 33 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RInRER A 313 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung vl 313 100%
Role and Function AERBE
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent ~ HMZE @A EHRIEXRAERE 2 FHMK

procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive Directors and senior
management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance
and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee held three meetings during the year ended 30th June 2014 to review the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and the remuneration packages of

the Directors and the senior management of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

EEELRE

BEET <

RER - ARAIZEENE SR ES R E B
PRt 2 B2 MIFBERRE - MARBIALSE
REENREN < ABRERNOT

HK$
B
Audit services for the Group REEBRE 2 EZRE 2,026,800
Non-audit services including: FERIRGEIE -
— review of interim results —EHPHES 255,000
— taxation services for the Group — RAEBRME 2 HIERE 276,400
— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —REERFERELH I ETIER
annual results announcement 22,000
Total Az 2,580,200

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Composition

A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate Governance
Committee) was established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate Governance Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of the

Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

ARAINERERZEG(EXEREZE
ENR-ZE——F=A- T ARETA J%E
THBEDEKXYL - PEEREBEGHE
BUFRTESARK E%ﬁﬁ&tﬂf%ﬂﬁzﬁu
T~

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESERY BRE HE=R

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) EELE (FEEELE) 22 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIk 4 2R 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung RInEERE 22 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; reviewing and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2014 to review the corporate governance
policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on corporate governance

to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve a

satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the internal control systems, the Company has
engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to conduct independent
internal control review and to evaluate major operations of the Group. During the
year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the

Company and its subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and
enquiries from Shareholders may be put to the Board through the following channels to

the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”):

by mail to the Company's head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Center,
|0 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2693-1663;
3. by fax at fax number (852) 2694-0877; or

4, by email at info@nhh.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. Constantly being
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the

Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a high

level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in
all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board attends the
Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the Company's corporate website

shortly after the meetings.

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of

Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice") at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre, 10 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including
the information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her
personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice
as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business days prior to the date of the general

meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply with the code

provision E.|.4 of the CG Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 41 to 152, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30th June 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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IR ET R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2014, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25th September 2014
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

For the year ended 30th June 2014 BiE = F —JFEN A =1 HIFFE

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pl TR TERT
Revenue Wosk 5 1,757,296 1,868,990
Cost of sales HERAK 8 (1,565,368)  (1,685,100)
Gross profit e 191,928 183,890
Other income Et A 6 4,867 398
Other gains, net Hith s — FME 7 779 14,277
Distribution costs PR 8 (71,632) (62,032)
Administrative expenses THRx 8 (99.264) (95,377)
Operating profit RE A 26,678 44739
Finance income f et 208 335
Finance costs HBER (9,237) (9.072)
Finance costs, net HBER - %A 9 (9,029) (8,737)
Profit before income tax BR B AT A 17,649 36,002
Income tax expense MIEX 10 (13,489) (11,554)
Profit for the year REHH 4,160 24448
Attributable to: AT AT RS -
Equity holders of the Company ARAIRE I 3,241 22,059
Non-controlling interests ezl 919 2,389
4,160 24,448
Eamings per share for profit attributable to equity AEEARRE RN
holders of the Company during the year i M 2 B R
(expressed in HK cent per share) (ABRBE)
— Basic —&EXR 13 0.88 597
~ Diluted — 88 13 0.88 597

The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F50Z 12 BENMTRGE M BERENERH

statements. 3o

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the profit ERARRR ZREFBEHME 12

for the year are set out in Note [2.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHkm=E

For the year ended 30th June 2014 BiE = F —JF N A =1 HIFFE

2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
TR TR
Profit for the year REHF 4,160 24448
Other comprehensive income: Hfvér ez
ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to HerewsHisBzE
income statement Wk EE
Revaluation gain of property, plant and 0¥ BERRBEEE
equipment on transfer to investment properties, REVZE
net of tax (Note 28(a)) Z BRB 1R E ft s (P 5T 28(a)) — 1,893
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement: s s BEkeanRkBE ¢
Revaluation gain of an available-for-sale financial asset AL EMBEE &
(Note 20) ez (B 5E20) 270 413
Currency translation differences fE N =58 8) 7,934
Other comprehensive income for the year AEHMEREWER 262 10,240
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFZE R AR 4,422 34,688
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FERRAERER
— Equity holders of the Company —RAIRE 3,503 32,264
— Non-controlling interests — FEERIE R 919 2424
4,422 34,688

The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial £5
statements. B -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
SEEERER

As at 30th June 2014 —F—[JE N A =+H

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt £ TEr TET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment v ER G 16 134,718 139,285
Leasehold land and land use rights ME T3 e 3P F4E 17 22,225 22,939
Investment properties REME 18 103,559 76,325
Intangible assets B EE 19 — —
Available-for-sale financial asset AR EMBEE 20 2,000 1,730
Deferred tax assets BRERIEEE 30 5,571 4924
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment MmE - BB RREE
and renovation costs KEBRAK 2,348 2991
270,421 248,194
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 22 283,087 301,442
Trade and bills receivables ER )L CVGTES: 23 280,998 31841 |
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Hib s - BAmkiRe 21,407 21950
Tax recoverable AR EIRIE 14 119
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 24 152 570
Cash and bank balances Re MRITER 25 97,278 112,082
682,936 754,574
Total assets mEE 953,357 1,002,768
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to the NAREREIERAR R #E
Company's equity holders
Share capital M 27 36,920 36920
Share premium BRAEE 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves H A f# 28 81,88l 81,619
Retained eamings RE R 28 290,592 294,735
471,859 475,740
Non-controlling interests FEE IS 21,461 22419
Total equity et 493,320 498,159
The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F0EI2BNMEABAGEMBRROE
statements. B -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HERERR/R

As at 30th June 2014 —F—[JE N A =+H

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P eE TERT FHET
LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 30 5,998 4457
Current liabilities mENE R
Trade payables ECTANEA 26 98,459 120,352
Other payables, deposits received and accruals B - EMEI & RERER 19,310 19,246
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 294,828 344,938
Derivative financial instruments TEEMITA 24 34,533 5014
Tax payable PRI HiIR 6,909 10,602
454,039 500,152
Total liabilities EY=RE 460,037 504,609
Total equity and liabilities mERRERE 953,357 1,002,768
Net current assets FRBEE 228,897 254422
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAE 499,318 502,616
On behalf of the Board REESe
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
Ay HEN
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
TE BT EREFLBITE

The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FS0ZE INERNMFREEHBREANERLES

statements. e
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Balance Sheet
BERER

As at 30th June 2014 R=FE—FNA=+H

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
By sE FET FET
ASSETS i
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARIRE 21 62,711 62711
Current assets TEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries I INGTEN 21 102,670 106,620
Other receivables H R 284 283
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITER 25 105 197
103,059 107,100
Total assets BEE 165,770 169,81 |
EQUITY g
Capital and reserves attributable NAREREIERAR R
to the Company's equity holders
Share capital R 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium BRAHE 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hitb 28 62,926 62,926
Retained earnings R & F 28 2,676 6,660
Total equity B 164,988 168,972

The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F50F 52NN ABREEMBERROE
statements. BB ST
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Balance Sheet

BEBRAR

As at 30th June 2014 R=FE—FNHA=+H

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T THT FET
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities mEEE
Accruals BIREH 782 839
Total equity and liabilities mEsNERE 165,770 169,811
Net current assets EREEE 102,277 106,261
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEAE 164,988 168,972

On behalf of the Board

REESE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

R HrEX

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EY BT EREFELTE

The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ESOZR DB AGANERRAEES

£

p)

o

=

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEESBEHR

For the year ended 30th June 2014 BZ =L —JFN A =1 HIFFE

Attributable to equty holders of the Company

RAREEETN
Other reserves
EitfEfe
Avalkble-for-
silefancal  Bxchange
Share assetresenve  fuctuation Non-
Share Share option Cptd  Reclaion  AREHE reseve  Retaned  controling
capita premium resenve resenve e AHEE i) eamings interests Total
RE  BREE BRERE AARE  ERER B RBRE  RERN HENES e
HKGOOO  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKFOOO  HKS000
et TRt TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn TR TR TEr TR
At IstJuy 2012 RZ5-—F+A-A 36920 62466 415 408 5697 67 64267 176368 1613 470781
Comprehensive income melE
Proft for the year KEEH - - - - - = - 0 2089 MM
Other comprehensive income Atiraka
Revaluztion gai of property,plant and % BERABERE TR
equipment on transfer to investment THRREEETRENR
propertes, net of ax (Note 28(2) BRESEER(ME28E) = - = = 1693 = = = = 1893
Revaluation gain of an avallable-for-sele A B AE  Effla
financial asset (Note 20) (Hzt20) - - - - - 413 - - - 413
Curency translation differences Eiz8 - - - - - - 789 - B 7934
Total comprehensive income FelEaE - - - - 1,893 413 189 2059 1404 34688
Transactions with owners BHEELRS
201212013 nterim diidend pad $MZ%3-2/25-=%F
hERE - - - - = = = (36%2) = (3692)
Dividends paid o non-controling nterests ERTEEERZRE = = = = = = = = (B6ls (619
Totaltransactions with owners BRERI R R - - - - - - - (36%) (3619) {1310)
At 30th June 2013 R=B-=f7A=1A 36920 62466 415 408 759 1040 72166 194735 2419 498159
The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F50Z IS2BHMEAGEMBRRNEES

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEZBEIR

For the year ended 30th June 2014 BiE = F —JF N A =1 HIFFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRFEGB
Other reserves
At
Available-for-
salefinancial ~ Exchange
Share assetreserve  fluctuation Non-
Share Share option Copital ~ Revaluation ~ WHEHE reserve  Retained  controling
aapitll  premium reserve reserve resene  BIHEE EX earnings  interests Total
Bx  BREE BRERE AAEE  EHER BE DRGSR REEN FENER 3
HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS000  HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§000
TR TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  fEr  TRn  TEn  TEx  TAn
At lstJuly 2013 NZZ-ZF+A-A 36,920 62,466 415 408 759 1040 7,166 194735 n419 498,159
Comprehensive income melE
Proft for the year KEEH - - - - - - = 3l 919 4160
Other comprehensive income Afptrals
Revaluation gain of an avallable-for-sele A B AE  Effla
financil aset (Note 20) (H20) = - = = = M = = = pi
Curency translation differences Eiz8 - - - - - - ®) - - (6]
Total comprehensive income ot - - - - - m ® 341 919 4m
Transactions with owners BEELRS
201272013 firel dhidend peid $MZ%3-2/25-=%F
KBRS - - - - = = = (369 = (3692
201312014 interm chvidend paid $HZ5-=/25-MEE
hERE = = = = = = = (369) = (369
Dividends pad to non-conrollng nterests X THEBbIER 2 RE - - - - - - - - (1904 (1,904)
Disposa of asubsidary (Note 31(¢) HE-HBRRHE3I () = = = = = = = = 7 7
Totaltransactions with owners BRERI R R - - - - - - - (7384) (1877) (9261)
At 30th june 2014 R=Z-BERA=TA 36,920 62,466 415 408 759 1310 7,158 290,59 21461 493320

The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial £50F 52 BN ARG BRKRNERY

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

v, \éiﬂﬁiﬂtﬁﬁ X

For the year ended 30th June 2014 BiE = F —JFEN A =1 HIFFE

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P & T TR
Cash flows from operating activities REXB2RER
Cash generated from operations REXBREEZHE 31(a) 83,578 14,024
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (B&),/ REBEEFEH (4,551) 145
The People’s Republic of China BERRE AR
(the "PRC") income tax paid ([ B ) mEH (11,632) (6,537)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBMEEZFRE 67,395 7,632
Cash flows from investing activities REXBZBRENM
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BERHR (9,349) (11,129)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights BEHE TR E AR — (7,689)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BE RREER
plant and equipment 31(b) 77 121
Prepayments for property, plant and WE - BE REBEREREBENK
equipment and renovation costs (2,348) (2991)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— B A 31(c) (51 —
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHRERAZFRE (11,671) (21,688)
Cash flows from financing activities REXB RERN
New bank loans HIBIRITERK 120,907 83079
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (142,108) (72717)
(Decrease)/increase in trust receipt loans B BEERORL), /L (29,944) 37,152
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests S TFIEEIER 2 RE (1,904) (3618)
Dividends paid XRE (7,384) (3,692)
Interest received EWFIE 208 335
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITEEM S (11,330 (11,230)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities MEEB(ER)/ EEX2 3RS (71,555) 29,309
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ RERIREEBZ (D), HE (15,831) 15253
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNzRekReEH 31(d) 105,875 88,958
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXE BT E (8) [,664
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZBEKREFR 31(d) 90,036 105,875

The notes on pages 50 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F50Z 12BN FAGAMERRNER

statements. i
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group™) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HMI I,

Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been approved for

issue by the Board of Directors on 25th September 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.|  Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS").
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,

which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)

@

e MR R

2 IEEHEBRBEA
21 HEEEE)

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments/revises to standards (a) FRFTER - #EA R B2
and interpretation SEETHREZZE

The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments/
revises to standards and interpretation which are mandatory for the

Group's financial year beginning on Ist July 2013:

Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 19 (Amendment)
BERGTERNE 95 (BETAX)

HKAS 27 (revised 201 1)
ERRIENZS (=T ——3])

HKAS 28 (revised 201 I)
Es e EalEes (T ——5i)

HKFRS | (Amendments)
BEMBHRELENF 15 (BIIA)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BAMBHRERANETHR (EFTA)

HKFRS 10

BARMBREEAE 0%

HKFRS 11

BAMBREREAE 15

HKFRS 12

BAMBREEAE 2%

HKFRS 10, HKFRS |1 and HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

AN EREERNZF 05 - BEMBHREENE 157K
BBMEREERIE 125% (BFTA)

HKFRS 13

BB HRE RS 135

Hong Kong International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“HK(IFRIC)™) —Int 20
B (BRMBHREREREE) — 2BH0%

HKFRSs (Amendments)
BERHRELEL (BIA)

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments/revises
to standards and interpretation has had no material effect on the
Group's result and financial position, except for certain additional

disclosures were made.

AT TR - $ERIM B
JSETRNRBLERAEE
BE-Z—=F+tA—HEH
FREERA :

Employee Benefits
B TR

Separate Financial Statements

BRI RE

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

REtE R B RAEHBHRE

First-time Adoption of HKFRS — Government Loans
BRRABEMBREER -BRFREE

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
WEEERMBREKENRE

Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IwE

Joint Arrangements
RERH

Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities
PR E BRI 5R

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

REMBEE  AETEIREMERNER
BE : @)

Fair Value Measurement
AREERFE

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine

BRI A A P B A RUBR AR AR

Annual Improvements 2009-201 | Cycle
“TENFE_T—FRABNFESE

BREBDFMIZ WD - BRAALA L3
R BERNEY BT R
BYHAEE 2 X6 MM BHRRL
EEAFE -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b)  The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation have been issued but are not effective for the year
ended 30th June 2014 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment)
EEQEAER (CF——) (BHTA)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
BEEERENR (BFTA)

HKAS 36 (Amendment)
ARG ERFEH (BFTA)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

ARG ERFE9% (BFTA)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments)

BRI ERF R REBGEREST (BFTAX)
HKFRS 9 (2014)

ERPBHELERFR (ZT—M)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (201 ) (Amendments)
BRI EERF 05 - BEMBRERLRNE 125 R
EEEENEH (CF ) (BIE)

HKFRS 14
BAMBREEAE 1457
HKFRS 15

BRI IwELEAF 55

HK(FRIC) - Int 21
BF (BRMBHREREREESR) — 2BE2R

Annual Improvements Project

FRAEE

Annual Improvements Project

FRAEE

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | st
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | st
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st

uly 2014
uly 2016
uly 2017
uly 2018

|
2
3
4
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Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions'
REX et &l - BTHK

Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'

SRTA : BBBERMBAEZEHENRE

Impairment of Assets'

BERE

Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
- Novation of Derivatives and Hedge Accounting'

PRITA : BRANGE-TETARESGX
HER

Classification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

AR ITE R EE T AR D 1

Financial Instruments*
SR THE

Investment Entities'

REER

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
EERITRP?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

WEF A O ERM K

Levies'
HE

Annual Improvements 2010 - 2012 Cycle'
“ETREIT - CHRANNFRAE

Annual Improvements 201 | - 2013 Cycle'
T —FE_T-FFPNFELE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

@

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those retumns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on acquisition
by acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s

identifiable net assets.
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22

e MR R

SR HRME(F

wERE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have

been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2.9). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

TESHEEMESE
22 HAKEH(E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Changes in ownership interests ) HERREE
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in AR B H B e
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is, 17 TNERREEHIENR
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The HABRRERR 5 — BE
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the BENEERMBE SN
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the TNR S - I NEREE
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non- 827 EE R RN
controlling interests are also recorded in equity. ENBAREEEREEN
ERCBRAER o [mIFES
EEMREENRBMCHE
ST o
(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries © HERELA]
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in fisl 4 52 B T B 4 A 2 A K
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the date when control BARE ERZEBNE
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or AREREEA LT BEHN
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of AR MEEEEDARE
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, ﬁmﬁ@% ° /@ﬂ%fﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬁu 1E
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously %%Q\a; %%@?EX'@\M%
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity L Sl A
EENFRAEE - B 5
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related ST 2 T S R B
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised S ERABNLALERR
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. MAEEREELESBE
ERXRBENTAAR - EF
RERZRNEEMEZAER
RANERNCEERED R
AR o
23 Segment information PEHEH

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.

KanERAEFELRRER
HOATREER BN AR
5 BREERRERRTE R
RBEMERENATESFRENEE
RAGHEE LD BHRE -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 BHRRBE(F
2.4 Foreign currency translation 24 y/‘#}ﬁﬁ
(@) Functional and presentation currency (a) DEENIIER
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's AEEETEERNIBER
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic RSB OUZEREE
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). FIENFELBERENES
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong FE(NEER]) - Hal
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and the Group's BREABTZY  mAT
presentation currency. RARRINEE T K&
B o
(b)  Transactions and balances ) XER#EH

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income

statement within “other gains/losses”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEENBRME#AE

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 24 MEBE(E)
(c)  Group companies (c) ZEEETLA
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of AEEETHAER(EH
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have HERARBRECERZN
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are R )N S8 A RIR
translated into the presentation currency as follows: SIREH - HEE RIEBHR
RABRWMT A AR BRI
5
() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are () BEEBBEXRMIN
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet; BERARRZEE
BEROBHZUT
EEAF
(i) income and expenses for each income statement are (i BhERMIIBKA
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not RX R E X%
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the B KRIELTHER
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income TRUAEEBMEER
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the M5 B HEmAEX
transactions); and MRFTE ERE
AT WA R
B 5 B H a0 fE =4
E: R
(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other (iy FIABAEEENER
comprehensive income. ZEREME A
RHER
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a WEENEBEE BER
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity ATEHARRBESINER
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are ZEERBE  UERWKHE
recognised in equity. RBE EERNERZEE
LN
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEETBRMERE)

25

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their

costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

25

0¥ BERRE

W% B KR TIIRIE 2 AR,
ZFHERZSRHEBR(IE)A
B ABRKERBERER
BREIAZR -

HEZRAGFABECREE &
EERZBREW ARG ER S
RORARSE B R 5% IR B 2 RN AT 1
At ER(NER)BRAE
RIEE - REARERREDE
EEZMHHRRKER TG
70

NERREEENHELINE Tt
o A ERE R E A -
NRRRMEEENHE LR EH
REMEENTERGAIERSF
HRRANEREDBEREE
mr

=t

— Leasehold land classified Shorter of the remaining lease term - 98BR FertHE Mgk

as finance lease or useful life RETHER A AFH

HE L ZBEE

—  Buildings 2% - 2.5% - BF 2% - 2.5%

— Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired - HEWMEERE AEIH

lease term or 20% MEH

E120% 2 8

&

—  Machinery and equipment 12.5% - BENFE 12.5%

— Fumiture, fixtures and 20% - B EKER 20%
office equipment N

— Motor vehicles 20% - ARE 20%

— Tools and moulds 20% - IHAREA 20%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

26

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

income statement.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried at
fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer
is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
the investment property are recognised in the income statement as part of

other gains/losses.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of reclassification

becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 46 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over

the period of leases.

2 FE

e MR R

SR HRME(F

25 ¥ HERZFEE)

26

BEZEERUFAFHESEL
EAEHREEERAE - WEE
ZEAERRETKESE - AIE
I TED L B B L 2 T M [ < R (O
$29)°

HERBMBE CBABRMEHER
HENEZRET - TERSRAE

27
e

MmERNEERULRFHETENR
BNE  MAEBDESERIRA
REVF - UWNEREE 2 Bk
HELRFEZENEEHEA
R - ARRENE AV EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties

2.8

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property. Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases
are classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted

for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined annually by independent
external professional valuers. Fair value is determined based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

income statement as part of other gains/losses.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property

and is recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of

five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the

income statement.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date; otherwise, they

are classified as non-current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than |2 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
include ‘trade and bill receivables’, ‘other receivables and deposits’ and
‘cash and bank balances’ in the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 23
and 25).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 BN BRYEF
2.10 ﬂﬁﬁé%ﬂ

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the

investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are presented in the income statement within
“other gains/losses” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group's right to receive

payments is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified

as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the

income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the

income statement when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 TESHBEBEE
211 BEEERHE

2.1l Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of

financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with

defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss

is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1l Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments

are not reversed through the income statement.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends on whether
the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so,

the nature of the item being hedged.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the income statement within “other gains/

losses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

213

214

215

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with

banks and bank overdrafts, if any.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

216

217

218

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial
liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. An equity instrument is any contract that does not meet the
definition of financial liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of

the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged

to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 SHBRBE(E
2.19 S@&fﬂﬁ 2H

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and its associate operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the relevant tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial recognition of an
asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or

loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or

the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net

basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations
The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive obligations to

pay further contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee's relevant income with a maximum of
HK$ 1,250 to HK$1,500 per month, as appropriate, as defined in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are

fully and immediately vested in the employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits (Continued)

@

()

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the Mainland China. Contributions are made by
the Group on a monthly basis to those state-sponsored retirement
plans based on a percentage of the relevant income of the relevant
employees. The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations

payable to retired employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited by
those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liabilities
for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and

matemity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits (Continued)

(©

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, including any market performance conditions;
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,

the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified performance and service
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income

statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

when the options are exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits (Continued)

221

222

(d)  Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.

Operating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

223

224

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values
and are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
the income statement over the period of the relevant liabilities and (i) the
amount of which the Group is obligated to reimburse the recipient under

the financial guarantee contracts.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Provision of logistic services
Revenue from the provision of logistic services, including freight

forwarding services, is recognised when services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 B RRBE(F)
2.24 Revenue and income recognition (Continued) 224 lﬁ?ﬁﬁ KUAER (&)
(i) Interest income (i) FIEHA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the MERAKRAERHNSEER
effective interest method. B e L 1 L 22 PR
(iv)  Rental income (v) HELA
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease MERADRERZEZNHE
period. BRI -
2.25 Dividend distribution 225 REZE
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a DIRTARARIEREAZ KGR
liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements in the period BRARARERE ALEEBR
in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders for final B B B - P RS AR
dividend and Board of Directors for interim dividend. AAEEGHERMTERE ZH
[ EAKEZ HBHRERAERS
B
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HkERERE
3.1 Financial risk factors 3 BBEBEE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk AEEREEDEEZBHER
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, and B msRARBEMNERR B
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management ENE A?Tﬁﬂrﬂ 2 [ (B 1R
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to ) EERBRERBESER -
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. AEEREBRE ERAEE STEIEHEEEDA

BRANSRTS  ARHAEEH
BRANBETNYERERE -

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use ﬁfiﬁiﬁﬂ BERAEE MK

of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the o AfEEETRBNITEER

Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in IEE‘H$’D\E§$%T&/EWB{ RAT

order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial RE - AEE—REBEREITED

instruments for speculative purposes. SNEE KA fiﬁfﬂ\[ﬂ o K&
B EERITE SR T AEREE
g o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange nisk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi
(“RMB") and US dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to USD and RMB. Since the HK$ is
pegged to USD, management are of the opinion that the exchange

rate risk exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases made
by the relevant group companies in currencies other than their own
functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign exchange
risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net foreign
exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign exchange
contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2014, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency contracts
mainly to sell/purchase USD and RMB, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group's receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade payables and borrowings were also denominated
in foreign currencies, details of which have been disclosed in Notes

23,25, 26 and 29.

76 Annual Report 5 B # & 2013 /2014

3

PREREE &)

31

AEEBEE(K)
@) SMNERR

AEBEBEFEMNEAR
RE - ABRRHUET
ARERETHESE - WAK
HERHGIERREERE
%M#E%%%EMZﬁ%
EASNERBEE

£ o $’§IE;<E%T%TE&
ARBHMINERR - BAE
TEBTHS  EEERA
B3 7T 5| B IMNE B 4
BAEK o

EREDIIVHEK BX&
BRAREERAENRERA
BHNERR - EREER
BEAEBEERRRNUFELH
D EBHEREEMma| 2
2Rk - REE T B
HNEE B S 8 iR RS 49 IA
ERINERME - R-_F—1
FRAZTH AEEHA
ETRFENINE(EER
ET)BRBEH  FERM
HUEE AEEETES
R - e RIRITHER
B 5N R G UAINE &t
B FERMTE23 2526
ROBE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

()

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2014, if HK dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$1,167,000 (2013: HK$2,389,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of foreign currency-denominated financial assets and

liabilities.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate nisk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank, details of
which are disclosed in Note 25. The Group's exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings, details of which
are disclosed in Note 29. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk whereas those carry at fixed

rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to

the trend of changes in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

©

(@

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 30th June 2014, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been HK$463,000 (2013: HK$394,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on cash
at bank net off with higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commaodity price risk in relation to its plastic
materials which is largely dependent on the oil price. The Group
closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to determine

its pricing strategies.

Credit nisk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and available-
for-sale financial assets included in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

its financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Credit risk (Continued)

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC, all derivatives
financial instruments are also entered into with these financial
institutions, which management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any financial institution and management does not expect any losses

arising from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. Normally

the Group does not require collaterals from trade debtors.

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade and other receivables
(including deposits made) based on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the relevant debtors.
The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the Directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in these consolidated financial statements. Other than
a specific circumstance as detailed in Note 7, the Directors are also of
the opinion that deposits are made to credit worthy parties and do

not expect non-performance of the counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREE@S)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HBEBEEE)
(@)  Credit risk (Continued) (@ 1EEERE(E)
As at 30th June 2014, the Company had provided guarantees RZZE-MEAA=THXR
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries AEBEMBRRZRITE
amounting to HK$304,749,000 (2013: HK$359,422,000). Credit risk Rt & #£304,749,000 %8
in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal. TE(ZE—=4F : 359,422,000
BIL)ZER  BRLEE
RZEERBRETERX -
(e)  Liguidity risk () nBELEE
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient FENRDE R EEE
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an HRARNEELEES

adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions
of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources and bank

borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and long-term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure of the
overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group. The
Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and committed
banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to
meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. As at 30th June 2014, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$575,203,000 (201 3:
HK$570,743,000) of which HK$304,749,000 (2013: HK$359,422,000)
was being utilised by the Group.

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow, including
interest payments computed using contractual rates, based on the
earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be required
to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the maturity date of bank
borrowings with a repayable on demand clause is based on agreed
schedule repayment set out in the loan agreements, disregarding
the repayment on demand clauses. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not consider that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREE@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HBEBEE(E)
(e)  Liguidity nisk (Continued) () RBELERE)
Within ~ Between |  Between 2
| year and2years and>5 years Total
—Fr —-E@MFR MELFA B
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Tz TR Tz Tz
Group £H
At 30th June 2014 RZZ—MFESA=+H
Trade payables EHEMNR 98,459 — — 98,459
Other payables and accruals BN R KRERER 15,102 — — 15,102
Bank borrowings RITEE 296,383 237 — 296,620
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA 3,701 5,484 — 9,185
Total k] 413,645 5721 — 419,366
At 30th June 2013 RZE—=FA=1H
Trade payables EHEMNK 120,352 — — 120,352
Other payables and accruals BN R RERER 15,754 = = 15,754
Bank borrowings RITEE 346,905 — — 346,905
Total o 483011 — — 483011
Within ~ Between |  Between 2
| year and 2 years and>5 years Total
—fR —EZMER WELFR BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T TERr T
Company NG
At 30th June 2014 RZT—MESA=+H
Accruals HiRER 782 — — 782
At 30th June 2013 RZZ—=%1"A=+H
Accruals HiZER 839 = = 839
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)  Liguidity nisk (Continued)
As at 30th June 2013, a subsidiary of the Group did not fulfill a
covenant clause set out in a bank loan agreement which stipulated
that dividend payments made by the subsidiary should not exceed
50% of its profits after tax for each financial year. Consequently, bank
loans and trust receipt loans of HK$4,660,000 and HK$13,121,000
respectively had been regarded as immediately repayable as at 30th
June 2013. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group obtained
a waiver in respect of this covenant requirement from the bank for

the year ended 30th June 2013 (Note 29).

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to

shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (include current and non-current borrowings as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and bank balances. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net

debt.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June 2014

ts

BREREE &)
32 EBXEBEZ(E)
R-E-mMER-T-=44A

and 2013; =1H REEZEBEEENT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$000
TR THT
Total borrowings (Note 29) BEE (M 29) 294,828 344938
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 25) B Re KRR AR (NG 25) (97,278) (112,082)
Net debt B 197,550 232,856
Total equity erEn 493,320 498,159
Total capital AR 690,870 731015
Gearing ratio BAREELE 29% 32%

The decrease in gearing ratio during the year ended 30th June 2014 was

mainly resufted from the decrease in the total borrowings during the year.

RBE-T-MFEAA=TRHLF
EA - IiM@%EiBD%I?&’§$
BELELT-

3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AFEE

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the balance sheet
at fair value are required to disclose the fair value measurements by level of

the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

0 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level I)

0 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

0 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and deposits and other
receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including current
borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals approximate their

fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level
I

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market

data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between level | and

level 2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

As at 30th June 2014, the Group's available-for-sale financial asset and

derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial instruments.
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eV BRRM T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREE@)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AFEET(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year NTRRBZE-Z—NEAA=T
ended 30th June 2014. Disclosures relating to investment properties that are AEFENEIEeRITANE
measured at fair value are set out in Note |8. xR BHNARBETENRED

EERME ISARE -

Available- Derivative
for-sale financial

financial asset instruments

AHHE TE Total
BMEEE SRIE ok

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TRT TET

Opening balance ks 1,730 (4,444 (2,714)
Loss recognised in income statement RERERER — (29,937) (29,937)
Gain recognised in equity R e R s 270 — 270
Closing balance HAR A BR 2,000 (34,381) (32,381)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year UTAREZE-_E—=F A=+
ended 30th June 2013. ArEERNEIBLRMTANS
i% o
Available- Derivative
for-sale financial
financial asset instruments
A E g Total
RBEE SRIA it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET THET

Opening balance s 1,317 (2,497) (1,180)
Loss recognised in income statement RERERER = (1,947) (1,947)
Gain recognised in equity i i G 413 — 413
Closing balance HAR A 8R 1,730 (4,444) .714)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

(a)  Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from use of these assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could resutt in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

®)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.

These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

(@

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on the basis
of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after allowing for
outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for reversionary income
potential. These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and
future economic conditions. The fair value of each investment property
reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash

outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables (including deposits
made) based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. Provisions are made where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible.
During the year ended 30th June 2013, management considered that the
carrying amount of a deposit for acquisition of properties has been impaired
and a provision of HK$9,051,000 has been made, details of which are
disclosed in Note 7. The identification of impairment in receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of the
receivables and impairment is recognised or reversed in the period in which

such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(€

@

Wiite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories
are recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories is recognised in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value of denvative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
uses its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. The valuation models require the input of subjective
assumptions, including forward foreign exchange rates, risk free rates and
market volatility. Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially

affect the fair value estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences or
tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such

estimates have been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION i R o EE B
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$000
TEx THET

Turnover BERE

Sales of goods HEEMm 1,755,124 1,867,192
Provision of logistic services R AR 2,172 1,798
1,757,296 1,868,990

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the business from the
operations nature and the type of products perspective, including the trading of
plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering
plastic products (“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities
(“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions are
entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also
be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the CODM is

measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER M)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE-T-—MESA=THILEFERHE
the year ended 30th June 2014 is as follows: RERRERREZFZIBRENHE
BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
B% el IRER Hitr &

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TR

Turnover e

— Gross revenue — D RbEHE 1,288,851 377,084 188,983 2423 1,857,341

— Inter-segment revenue —HEREEE (97,149) (1,187) (1,709) — (100,045)
Revenue from external customers INERE P e zs 1,191,702 375,897 187,274 2,423 1,757,296
Segment results ARG (49,892) 48,276 6,748 21,546 26,678
Finance income g6 79 122 7 — 208
Finance costs BER (6,767) (1,481) (810) (179) (9,237)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BHEAT(E18),a (56,580) 46917 5,945 21,367 17,649
Income tax expense HIEX (13,489)
Profit for the year AEHH| 4,160
Non-controlling interests IR (919)
Profit attributable to equity holders 7 A% 3 {5 )4 7

of the Company 3,241
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eV BRRM T

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WERIHER#)
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g7 el IRER Htto X&EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T#T T TERr T
Other information: HithEH
Additions to non-current assets FERBEEEM
(other than financial instruments (BRemIAR
and deferred tax assets) BRETRIEEEN) 848 4,845 5,986 18 11,697
Depreciation of property, E RN E
plant and equipment e 615 5,944 9,414 826 16,799
Amortisation of leasehold land ME LRt
and land use rights Rz EE 398 207 32 77 714
(Reversal of)/provision for FERE(RE),/
impairment of inventories i (284) 375 230 V) 319
Provision for impairment B HRIRE
of trade receivables £ — %4 — — 94
Write-off of other receivables At FE T AR — — — 86 86
Unrealised fair value loss on fTEEMIA
derivative financial instruments AERATEER 29,937 — — — 29,937
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e MR R
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER M)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as RZZE-—MEAAZTRRELERE
at 30th June 2014 is as follows: ERRE R REDHDERMT ¢
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% EeH IRER Hity BN

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TERT TR TERT TRT TR

Segment assets NEEE 412,372 276,398 148,901 115,686 953,357
Total assets BEE 953,357
Segment liabilities ABEE 119,778 25,564 14,210 5,657 165,209
Borrowings E3= 243,604 21,843 24,671 4710 294,828
Total liabilities BafE 460,037
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e MR RMEE
5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER M)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_T—=—F A=THILFERH
the year ended 30th June 2013 is as follows: RERRERREZFZIBRENHE
BT
Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group

g5 EEH  IiRZH ity KREHE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TRT THT TR TAT THET

Tumover S

— Gross revenue —DEEHEE 1,350,782 401,943 213,730 2443 1,968,898

— Inter-segment revenue —HEREEE (95,162) (2987) (1,759) = (99,908)

Revenue from external customers MR P MiEs 1,255,620 398956 211,971 2443 1,868,990

Segment results ARG (34.825) 48,772 17971 12,821 44739

Finance income Bt 60 263 12 — 335

Finance costs HBER (6316) (1714) (924) (118) 9.072)

(Loss)/profit before income tax BHEAT(E18),w (41,081 47,321 17,059 12,703 36,002

Income tax expense HIEX (11,554)

Profit for the year ARE M 24,448

Non-controlling interests S (2,389)

Profit attributable to equity holders 7 A% 38 45 )4 7
of the Company 22,059
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e MR R
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER M)
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH  IiREN At KEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TR TAT THAT TRT

Other information: HithEH

Additions to non-current assets FERBEEEM

(other than financial instruments (BRemIAR

and deferred tax assets) BRETRIEEEN) 9952 5847 5814 196 21,809
Depreciation of property, E RN E

plant and equipment e 528 7,245 8,672 147 17,592
Amortisation of leasehold land ME LRt

and land use rights Rz EE 278 207 32 78 595
Provision for/(reversal of) BERBEEE/

impairment of inventories (M=) 474 734 (1,170) (235) (197)
Provision for impairment B HRIRE

of trade receivables £ 1101 — — — 1,101
Write-off of other receivables o fth FE T AR — 596 = = 596
Provision for impairment of deposit ~ WIEMI % 2 &

for acquisition of properties REER — 9,051 — — 9,051
Unrealised fair value loss on TESMIA

derivative financial instruments RERLTERE 1,947 — — — 1,947
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eV BRRM T

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WKEkpHENE)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as RZZE-—=ZFRA=THERELERE
at 30th June 2013 is as follows: ERREZAZIBENDERMT -
Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group

g5 EGH  IRBH Hit r&E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THET TET FHET THET

Segment assets NEEE 460,648 292,030 160,658 89,432 1,002,768

Total assets BEE 1,002,768

Segment liabilities AR 105,589 30,702 17,748 5632 159,671

Borrowings f5& 281813 20,127 39,323 3675 344938

Total liabilities wmak 504,609

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers

attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2014 is approximately

HK$870,054,000 (2013: HK$998,902,000), and the total of its revenue from

external customers from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately

HK$887,242,000 (201 3: HK$870,088,000).

At 30th June 2014, the total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets and rights arising
under insurance contracts) located in Hong Kong is approximately HK$ 160,641,000
(2013: HK$139,646,000), and the total of these non-current assets located
in other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$102,209,000 (2013:

HK$101,894,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INCOME

e MR R

HAlA

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Rental income HE WA

4,867 3,981

Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$140,000 (2013: HK$127,000).

OTHER GAINS, NET

REWE 2 BBERS A 141400008 7T
(ZZ—=%F:127000/7T) °

Hitzs - FE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz TRT
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note |8) REMFEN R TERE (PG 18) 27,234 18,670
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA
— forward foreign exchange contracts and interest —FHEEERBZINERRER
rate swap contracts held for trading RMEEBHEH
— unrealised —RER (29,937) (1947)
~ realised -2ER 4,029 4424
Net exchange (losses)/gains INE(E51B) Wz (515) 2,181
Provision for impairment of deposit for acquisition W% Re
of properties (Note) B () — (9,051)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 31(c)) HE—ME A REE(E3IC) (32) —
779 14277
Note: Bz -

In prior year, the Group paid a deposit of RMB7,150,000 (equivalent to HK$9,051,000) for
the acquisition of certain properties in Mainland China. However, the transaction has not been
completed for years as defects in certain title documents are yet to be rectified despite continuous
efforts had been spent in the past. During the year ended 30th June 2013, management evaluated
all circumstances, including the period of time involved since signing the acquisition agreement, the
costs and benefits to proceed with the transaction, the likelihood of completion in the foreseeable
future, and the possibility of obtaining refund from the seller in cash, concluded that there are
significant uncertainties about the recoverability of the deposit as at 30th June 2013. Consequently,

a full provision was made on the deposit for the year ended 30th June 2013

RUGEEE AEERNES TURTE
MR E S FARET150000T(EE A
9,051,000 L) 2 S - RBEFER BE
EREERS ) - BRE T EE 2 BRI
FES MURSHMRTH - RBEE=ZT—=
FRAZTHLEFE  EBEIEREBER -
BERZEREDSENERR  BEX5
RPN R F2% - AR T8 B 4% SR A0 SE Ak AT REAE 2
REAWERSRAN ALY  BRHR=F
—=FXNAZTARERENTREEFEER
THETRZ - Al R=T—=F,~A=1+H
BRI SEE 2 ERE -
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e MR RMEE
8  EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RMEBEEIZAX
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
Cost of inventories sold excluding manufacturing costs HEFEXRN(TEEEEKR) 1,488,219 1,611,998
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17) B £ 4t [ 4t fsb PR AR 8 (PR 5T 17) 714 595
Auditor's remuneration BEEME 2,668 2506
Depreciation nE 16,799 17,592
Provision for impairment of trade receivables B RBFREERS 94 [,101
Write-off of other receivables H At FE T M AR 86 596
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of inventories RERBEEE/(BE) 319 (197)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BEREREZ
BB/ (M) 30 (N
Employee benefit expenses, including Directors' EERAXL(BRESHE)
emoluments (Note 14) (B3 14) 116,611 109,385
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings THREF EEHERS 8,061 7316
Repairs and maintenance expenses BIERRERX 3,447 3,306
Transportation and packaging expenses BRRBPERY 27,321 24,552
Travelling and office expenses ERERBRAERT 10,970 9,363
Utility expenses KERX 13,607 13872
Other expenses Hith&MA 47317 40,525
Total cost of sales, distribution costs HEMK « D IHKARITH
and administrative expenses X B 1,736,264 1,842,509
Representing: Rk :
Cost of sales HEKA 1,565,368 1,685,100
Distribution costs KA 71,632 62,032
Administrative expenses TERZ 99,264 95,377
1,736,264 1,842,509
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e MR R

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 BRWENEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Finance income: B Es
- Interest income from bank depostts - —ROESMEEA 08 3%
Finance costs: BIER :

— Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable

—FRAFARBEE R

within five years EEZ 7R (11,330) (11,230)

— Net exchange gains on financing activities —BERB 2 IVERER TR 2,093 2,158
(9.237) 9.072)

Finance costs, net HsER - %A (9,029) (8737)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's subsidiaries

established and operate in Mainland China has been calculated on the estimated

assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation as applicable to the relevant

subsidiaries.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

BIEX

BB MERIIRIEF N ERT R A
BHEADZTAHE(ZF—=F A
DZTRER)FAERE - FREBATR
BARS BN E AL REE 2B
AR AF R ERBE A KA R
BRAZERBETE -

HAWEBRZBANHA -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THRT

Current tax: AEFRIA -
Hong Kong profits tax BAENGH 1,343 3,197
PRC corporate income tax REIRRAEH 11,209 8,252
Under-provision in previous years WEFEEREETR 43 474
12,595 11923
Deferred tax (Note 30) BT HA (M EE30) 894 (369)
13,489 1,554
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eV BRRM T

[0 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10 BEXH@E)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical AEERBRBAEN < HIERRER
amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows: AEBNGHRZHEME 2 B eE
ZEBMT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Profit before income tax BR AT A 17,649 36,002
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) BBE 165%(ZT—=F : 165%)
AR ZHIA 2912 5940
Effect of different tax rates in PRC PETARE 2 HE 3,389 2348
Income not subject to tax BB Z WA (4,288) (3.228)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A2 X 2,100 2227
Tax losses not recognised AERLBBER 8,699 3618
Under-provision in previous years NEFERETR 43 474
Others Hit 634 175
13,489 I1,554
Il PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE [ AEREESET

COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$3,400,000 for the year
ended 30th June 2014 (2013: HK$10,082,000).
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e MR R

2 DIVIDENDS 2 RE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Interim, paid, of HK1.0 cent (2013: HK1.0 cent) Bk HARR S B AR 10781
per ordinary share (ZE—=%F: 1.0/80l) 3,692 3,692
Final, proposed, of Nil (2013: HK1.0 cent) THIRRHRE
per ordinary share (ZE—=%F: 1.0/80l) — 3,692
3,692 7,384
Notes: (i
(@) At a meeting held on 27th February 2014, the Directors declared an interim dividend of @ RIE-NF-A-TtHENZEE
HKI.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 3 st December t EEERREE—_T—=F1+_F

2013, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2014, and has been reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th June 2014.

At a meeting held on 25th February 2013, the Directors declared an interim dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 31st December
2012, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2013, and has been reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th June 201 3.

At a meeting held on 25th September 2014, the Directors resolved not to declare any final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2014.

At a meeting held on 26th September 2013, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share, totaling HK$3,692,000. This proposed dividend was not reflected as
dividend payable in these financial statements and has been reflected as an appropriation of

retained eamings for the year ended 30th June 2014.

=T—HIEAERARERBRS G
1Ol » ££3,692,000/ 7T © IBRE S
WA EE AR R SRR E
BEREZE-_Z—NE A=1THItF
B2 REEFRHE

RZB—=F_A-+RARTZEH
L EFERREE-_T——-F+=8
=+ —HIEAERRER RS TR
Lol » ££3,692,000/ 7T © WIBRR S
AR ER B B R R DIER RS
HERBE-Z—=F A=1AHLF
BEZREBRMHAE

—MFEAAZTRBRITZEH
i§$ SR THEE-_Z—NE A
=tHAFEEREMKARE -

RZZE-ZFNAZFT BETzEH
b EEREREROREER .08
i+ $£3,692,000 7% 7T © 1 B H R AR 2
RN AR B IK I ERARS - B
BEREZE-Z-—MFAA=THILFE
ZRBEFRHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

I3 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BREA
Basic Hx
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity BRERBITIZEA RRREG R TGK
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in NERNEBETERBRZIETIHEE -
issue during the year.
2014 2013
Profit attributable to equity holders of NG EY 3y
the Company (HK$'000) (F%T) 3,24l 22,059
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FREBETE R METF9H 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREXRFN (SREM) 0.88 597
Diluted #E
Diluted eamings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number SEERBERAE BHEBRITLR
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential ordinary Bz METHHREL AR  UREME
shares arising from the Company's share options. Dilutive earmings per share for EBEEN IR TTERRERTHE
the years ended 30th June 2014 and 2013 equal basic eamings per share as the BoRBE_T-NEA=TAKZ
exercise of the outstanding share options would be anti-dilutive. TR A=TRLEMEEE AT
FRIEEREAREEYE  AURH
BEEZBREFRFNGZNEGRER
af o
|4 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 14 EEBFXL(EBFESHE)
EMOLUMENTYS)
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Wages, salaries and other allowances I& 5l RE 28 111,286 104,336
Pension costs RIS KA 5,325 5,049
116,611 109,385
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15 EEREEEEAEZHE

(a)  Directors’ emoluments @) EFEHz
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_Z-HNF A=THILLFE
ended 30th June 2014 is set out below: BuUEZzMEWMT
Salaries,
other Employer’s
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
in kind Discretionary scheme
M - bonuses 1)
Fees  HZE  BIBRE BikE Total
Name of Director BExps e REYNZR MTEAL 2R B

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TR TERT TR TR

Executive Directors HITESE

Mr HUI Sai Chung Ay 950 2,845 — 312 4,107
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong TR EE 950 2,845 — 312 4,107
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony ~ B TRfE L — 2,444 — 250 2,694
Mr LAl Kam Wah RRELE = 2,444 = 175 2,619
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBEX LT — 1,716 — 175 1,891
Mr NG Chi Ming REBEE - 1,653 - 198 1,851
Independent Non- BUFHTES

Executive Directors

MrHO Wai Chi, Paul AREEEE 200 = — — 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIMKBEL & 150 — — — 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung IBnEEL A& 150 — — — 150
Total k] 2,400 13,947 — 1,422 17,769
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15 ESEREEEBASZME @)

(Continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEFHE(E)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_T—=-F/ A=THLFE
ended 30th June 2013 is set out below: BUEZzMEMT :
Salaries,
other Employer's
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
inkind  Discretionary scheme
e - bonuses ExH
Fees Hofh)2 Ak BITEE BRE Total
Name of Director EEA e REDIG HITEAL 2K K]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET THET
Executive Directors WITES
Mr HUI Sai Chung FEEE 650 2999 — 294 3943
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AR KA 650 2,999 — 294 3943
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony ~ & FRiE+ — 2323 — 215 2,538
Mr LAl Kam Wah RipgERL — 2323 — 147 2470
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBLL — 1,627 — 164 1,791
Mr NG Chi Ming RERLE = 1,549 = 186 1,735
Independent Non- BUFHNTES
Executive Directors
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fESEE 200 — — — 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIkBER & 150 — — — 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIgELE 150 — — — 150
Total ik 1,800 13,820 — 1300 16920
No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2013: Nil). No RAFENTBESHERS M
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement R(ZTE—ZF: &) RAFE
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office NAEBEHEN FEAESME
during the year (2013: N, WeR kL EEWE I HE(ZT

—=F E)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include four (2013: four) Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable

to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

e MR R

EEREEEEABZHE &)

(b) LEREHMHAL

REER ERURRFMAL
Fomf(ZT—=F : W) RE
FAEMEEREXZEF 2 AMH
BE - R IM—NURSHFMALR

FEEZEHMFBWT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind il Ep B REYFS 2,203 2,119
Discretionary bonus B TEAT 457 157
Pension costs BIRE AR 264 254
2,924 2,530

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (2013: HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000).
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2013: Nil).

FRATZHMERA—BRTE
F-RBLEZABAL(ZE—=
F:_BATETATE=BE
BT CBERN - REEY EF E
BAT(BREZREMES)SM
M & (ERREMASERK ERA
ZEE(CE-=F: &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

|6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

l6 W% BERRE

Fumiture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Machinery and office
buildings Leasehold and equipment Motor Tools
HELH  improvements equpment il HE vehicles and moulds Total
RgT HENERE KIRRE RELERE "E IARKRA 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TEL TARL TAR TR TAT
At Ist July 2012 R=Z-=£+F-A
Cost KA 124,008 32099 168566 19,209 8,156 1,975 354013
Accumulated depreciation Z3HIE (32.124) (11,344) (145382) (17,090) (5,608) (1,230) (212,778)
Net book amount RHE 91,884 20,755 23,184 2119 2,548 745 141,235
Year ended 30th June 2013 HE-T-=F
NAZTHIEER
Opening net book amount HOREFE 91,884 20,755 23,184 2119 2,548 745 141,235
Additions il 1,485 5030 7411 1,008 82| 115 15,870
Exchange differences Ei=E 1337 3 2| 36 3 | 1699
Transfer to investment BRERENE
properties (1,807) — — — — — (1,807)
Disposals/write-off e/ M - (120) - - - — (120)
Depreciation ik (2850) (5555) (7.002) (847) (1,198) (140) (17592)
Closing net book amount HRREHE 90,049 20,141 23854 2316 2,04 721 139,285
At 30th June 2013 RZE-=%7~A=1AH
Cost KA 125,408 36815 179,504 20,260 8,609 2,101 372,697
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (35359) (l6,674) (155,650) (17.944) (6:405) (1380) (233412)
Net book amount RHE 90,049 20,141 23854 2316 2,204 721 139,285
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBHRFTMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

l6 ¥xX- BMERRE#E)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Machinery and office
buildings Leasehold and equipment Motor Tools
HELH improvements equipment Ml - KB vehicles  and moulds Total
kBT BENEEL HBERRE RHBLERE RE IARESR £t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FER TR TER TER FER TR
Year ended 30th June 2014 HEZT—NF
AAZTHIEFE
Opening net book amount HRE#E 90,049 20,141 23,854 2316 2,204 721 139,285
Additions bl - 4,060 7,028 1,027 167 58 12,340
Disposals/write-off HE /MK = = 1) = (73) (33) (108)
Depreciation e (2,853) (6,353) (5:831) (871) (816) (75) (16,799)
Closing net book amount HIREREFE 87,196 17,848 25,049 2472 1,482 671 134718
At 30th June 2014 RZE—NE A=TH
Cost KA 125,408 40,861 186,354 19,191 8,340 2,101 382,255
Accumulated depreciation ZEtHE (38212) (23,013) (161,305) (16,719) (6,858) (1,430 (247,537)
Net book amount REFE 87,196 17,848 25,049 2472 1,482 671 134718
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RMEE
|6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 W% BERRE @)
Net book value of leasehold land and buildings are analysed as follows: ME T MEFZREFESTAT -
Group
As at 30th June
EL ]
RAR=1H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, held on: ERERE AELHRIET
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZHE 34,836 36,032
Buildings in the PRC, held on: ERBERHEZET
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZHE 52,360 54,017
87,196 90,049
(@)  Depreciation expense of HK$13,260,000 (2013: HK$13,908,000) has been @ I E B F132600008 (= T

included in cost of sales, HK$402,000 (2013: HK$452,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,137,000 (2013: HK$3,232,000) in administrative expenses.

(b) As at 30th June 2014, the net book amount of property, plant and (b)
equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to

approximately HK$47,744,000 (2013: HK$49,242,000).

1 1 O Annual Report 5 [ $§ ¥ 2013 /2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& =

e RRMEE
|7 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17 HELHRTHEHE
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid ASEREEL R T HE AR ER
operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows: REBALEHENE - HREFED
wT -
Group
£

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

T THET

At beginning of the year F9) 22,939 15,547

Addition 1 — 7,689

Exchange differences BN ER = 298
Amortisation i (714) (595)

At end of the year ESN 22,225 22,939

Geographical analysis: RIE AT -
Leasehold land in Hong Kong, held on: EEARFAZEEL
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFEZHE 1,050 1,082
Land use rights in the PRC, held on: EHRERE 2 i AR

Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTEZHE 21,175 21,857

22,225 22,939
As at 30th June 2014, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights RZZE-—MFAA=1TH HELTHE
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately I 3 PR BR [ % {B.49.3,793,00078 7T
HK$3,793,000 (2013: HK$3.916,000). (ZZ—=%F 139160008 T) BIKAT

RIT - RAKERERITEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RMEE
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REW=
Group
£
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
At beginning of the year F9 76,325 53,775
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BEEME  BERE - 1,807
Revaluation gain of property, plant and equipment on transfer  #1% * BE REHEEBEE TR
to investment properties (Note 28(a)) T AREREREYE
2 EfhUas (Hi3E28(a)) — 1,893
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 7) REWME 2 AT ERE (FF7) 27,234 18,670
Exchange difference Rt — 180
At end of the year ESN 103,559 76,325
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18

@

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was
performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates, to determine the fair
value of the investment properties as at 30th June 2014 and 2013. The
revaluation gains or losses are included in “other gains, net’(Note 7) in the
consolidated income statement. The following table analyses the investment

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

e MR R

REWE(E

(a) L EERE
AEENREMERGEMEET
R_E-—NEM_F—=FXA
ST RRTEUMGE  METEA
nBE - ZEfkaERaEER
Al AR EfM s — FE ]+
(B&E7) - TRABHEED TR
AREEARNRENE -

Fair value
measurements

at 30th June 2014
using significant

unobservable inputs

(Level 3)

R-Z2-mf

AA=TH

FAERNAT

BR@ AT

NARBENE

Description brRu (%3/8)
HK$’000

TER

Recurring fair value measurements REURAABEE
Investment properties: REME

— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —T¥REE-FH 92,800

— Car park units - Hong Kong —REL-FE 1,400

— Commercial office units and apartment - PRC —EERREEM - 9,359
103,559

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair

value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances

that caused the transfer.

There were no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.

ARENBRANEHEENS
HRERKENEY - BRADA
BEBR BER -

RERNTESE| - F2REIEREH
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REWRE
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) LAEEFEE )
The following table presents the changes in investment properties with fair TRETREBEE_Z—HNFXHA

=t EIJtiFW%‘JFHEKTﬂ%E%%
BANDABEME(EIR)NOR

value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the
year ended 30th June 2014.

ENERD :

PRC Hong Kong Total

i &E nE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TR TR T&T

Opening balance & 7,975 68,350 76,325

Net gain from fair value adjustment AR BEARNGFE 1,384 25,850 27,234

Closing balance IS 9,359 94,200 103,559

Total gains for the year included FREEE -

in the consolidated income statement, BREERERERN

under other gains [ E o dezs |+ 1,384 25,850 27,234

AKRBURBELTFENKREY
RERNTFEL+ELHEER
5o

The Group's interests in investment properties in Hong Kong and PRC are

held on leases of between 10 to 50 years.

(b)  Valuation process of the Group (b) AEEGE R

The Group's investment properties were revalued at HK$103,559,000 (2013:
HK$76,325,000) as at 30th June 2014 by Chung, Chan & Associates, an
independent professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations and
segments of the investment properties valued. Certain of the investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating lease arrangements,
further summary details of which are included in Note 18(e) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

®)

Valuation process of the Group (Continued)

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The finance department
reports directly to the chief operating decision-maker. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the chief operating

decision-maker, finance department and the independent valuer.
At each financial year end the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when compared to the

prior year valuation report; and
. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date between

the chief operating decision-maker, finance team and the independent valuer.

e MR R

18 RENEE)

)

FEE G ()

R EE RIS B M
T EE B TR - P15
ERNEREEAREES - B
ERAFE  SBREENRE
SR ERRRERES -

ESEMHRFEER - MHEHEE

o REUBURGERSHHNE
EXBA

o REMEEERECEEHE
HEWRT 082

o EBVMHERMETHR

NEEREAY  F3IBAAEE
MEPHEREEARRE BB
B EMED RN
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eV BRRM T

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 RENX(E)
(c)  Valuation techniques (c) 1FERN
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs FAERK TR BRG AELD
DREEFE

ARENRENDEDABE-R
BEREERE - WHEEER
%KTE&@%@)\  WERFHE

Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally determined
using the income approach which largely uses unobservable inputs and taking

into account the significant adjustment on term yield to account for the risk

upon reversionary and the estimation in vacancy rate after expiry of current

lease. These significant unobservable inputs include:

EHEABE Y AHED)
A e
BEBEME o LEEATA

BRBADIE
Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2014 unobservable inputs
R=Z-RE Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRHA
i ZRNREE fhERE  FUBEEAA AUBRBAEE HAAEENBR
HK$'000
AR
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 92800 Income approach Rental value HK$6.76 - HK$9.03 per  The higher the rental value,
I REN -8 method HE month per square feet the higher the fair value
Ytk S¥iREAecET AR AAEELR
F9.038T
Yield rate 301% - 402% The higher the yield rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value
28R40 AABEEE
Car park units — Hong Kong 1,400 Income approach Rental value HK$7475 permonth  The higher the rental value,
e -FH method il per unit the higher the fair value
Mg % BERFATASEL HESE RABEHS
Yield rate 12.81% The higher the yield rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value
EEXER - DABELE
Commercial office units and 9359 Income approach Rental value ~ RMB64.03-RMB87.07 per  The higher the rental value,
apartment - PRC method HE month per square meter the higher the fair value
BEBAEEN —PH WgiA BYNAEAMBARY HESS AABEHS
28707 AR%
Yield rate 344% - 444% The higher the yield rate,
ZER the lower the fair value

1 1 6 Annual Report & [ $§ ¥ 2013 /2014

E5%H5 AAEEUE



18

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(c)  Valuation technigues (Continued)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

(d)  As at 30th June 2014, the fair value of investment properties pledged
as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$29,008,000 (2013: HK$21,005,000).

(e)  The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

18

e MR R

RENE (&)
(© BELIE)
FERHERMTEZE -

(d RZTE-—NFAA=1H KED
% IR % 8 4929,008,000 % T.(=
T — =% :21,005000% 5) E &
BYRIT REAEERERTE
B

() BETTHEMEERE KR
E KR E RN -

Group
£

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER BT
Not later than one year —FR 2,405 3,008
Later than one year and not later than five years —FRETERAE 414 1,547
2,819 4,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAMBERRME
19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 EBREE
Group
58
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Technical know-how SR psIE]
Cost A 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation Ergcs (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment ZFRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount REFE — —

RBE_FT-DNFEAA=THLEE
A EEERABRMARZ RABELR

During the year ended 30th June 2014, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount

of the technical know-how and considered that the recoverable amount should be

nil. REEEEMERE -
20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 20 AHHENKEE
Group
£E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
At st July RtA—H 1,730 1317
Net gains transfer to equity By Sl G 270 413
At 30th June RAA=+A 2,000 1730

MEEENBEERRNERBR LB
Btz ELEMARIZAR Z =B
HK dollar., & o WEBINBTTAEN -

Available-for-sale financial asset represents a 3.6% equity interest in an unlisted

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is denominated in
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e MR R

21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM 20 BUKMBEARRKRRE
SUBSIDIARIES
(a)  Investments in subsidiaries - Company () WEBRARE— 1]
Company
AL
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMBA - BAA 62,711 62711

®)

©

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June 2014

are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries - Company
The balances are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. The

amounts are denominated in HK dollar.

Matenrial non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2014 was HK$2 1,461,000,
of which HK$22,738,000 is attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics
Materials Limited (“NHEPML"). The non-controlling interests in respect of

other subsidiaries were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of HK$1,559,816 were held in Mainland China and
were subject to local exchange control regulations. These local exchange
control regulations provided for restrictions on exporting capital from the
region, other than through normal dividends or remittance of revenue

income through import/export companies.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-controlling

interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary

that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

()

(©)

R-ZB-MEXA=+A  ARF
ZEIEMBRAIFEHARNGENE
WAMEE3S -

JEWHTE 2 Al 5 — 22 A]
ZEBYEEN  2ENERER
KEE WEBUETREN -

BAMHZ G
RZZ—WEA=THAFEE
ERSBER4610008 T - HA
22,738,000 78 TR 3R B T2 28
BRAR(RETREN]) - BH
1t BB 22 R 5 BA D FE R 2R N
EYND

ENE

Be RFTFERIS598168THF
MAERE - X8 IMNEE TR
B o WEINEEFIRGEEEREL
REBEINCGERE R RBRE
B2 AIRE s BIBR AN o

EBEERFEHIRENITE AR
MR EMTEER

AT e A 45 B E R MO FEE 18
A B A RME R AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBHRRMEE
21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM 2l EBRNBLARRKRKRE#)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(c)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) EBEXBHFERER (E)
Summarised balance sheet HEEEBER
NHEPML
RETRER
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T
Current E
Assets BE 92,154 100,332
Liabilities =X (49,305) (56,858)
Total current net assets FMENE AR 42,849 43474
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Assets BE 57,605 61,146
Liabilities BE (844) (1366)
Totalnon-cumentrnetassets  FERBAER®E 56761 59780
Net assets FEE 99,610 103,254
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21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM

e MR R

2l EUHBLARARRERE &)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(c)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) EBEXFZHER(E)
Summarised income statement and statement of comprehensive income mEWRK LAl ER
NHEPML
RETRER
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Revenue Yoak 188,999 213730
Profit before income tax BRA A& A 5,738 16,481
Income tax expense BIES (1,381) (2,846)
Post-tax profit BREI& R A 4,357 13,635
Other comprehensive income Hikr e W — 336
Total comprehensive income malaesE 4,357 13971
Total comprehensive income allocated to mEWRBEEER
non-controlling interests FEE I 1,036 3325
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XTI IR 2 RS 1,904 3618
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21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM 2l BUKBARRKRREME)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(c)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) EBEXFZHER(E)
Summarised cash flows REHRSMER
NHEPML
RETREN
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER BT
Cash flows from operating activities REFBZREN
Cash generated from operations REFXBHEECRE 36,386 31,078
Income tax paid BiEE (4,959) Q77)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBREEZFHE 31,427 30,801
Net cash used in investing activities REXBAERAZFRE (5,979) (5,814)
Net cash used in financing activities BEERERFRE (28,605) (20,953)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ BRE&RBEFE2 (RL) /180 (3,157) 4,034
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FOzRe PR EER 5,953 1,762
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents Re kA eFH 2 INENE — 157
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEAERR2EH 2,796 5953

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

A E BB REE R R AT R

22 INVENTORIES 2 =FE
Group
&8
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Trading stocks EHEBEER 166,691 183,265
Raw materials JR#} 77,189 81771
Finished goods SR 39,207 36,406
283,087 301,442
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e MR R
22 INVENTORIES (Continued) 22 FEM#M)
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in the Rl a R NEEK AP HER AR
consolidated income statement amounted to approximately HK$1,565,049,000 I ZHEERARE EL A ,565049,000 %
(2013: HK$1,685,297,000). TL(ZZ—=%F : 1,685297,000/87T) °
Provision for inventories amounted to HK$319,000 (2013: reversal of provision of AEEXRFEREFE390008 T(ZF
HK$197,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the consolidated income — =& BEERF 1970008 T) 2 FE
statement. BEER  WREEWRERAHEKAR
SUNE
Inventories amounting to HK$226,652,000 (2013: HK$256,596,000) were held & $£226,652000% T(=Z T — =
under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (Note 29). 256,596,00078 7T ) 2 F ERBE YRR

TERZ 2o A (HE29)

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 EBEFZRURREWEE
Group
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Trade receivables 2 5 Rk 261,275 303,348
Less: provision for impairment of receivables A ESURER (3,489) (3395)
257,786 299,953
Bills receivable e 23212 18,458
280,998 318411
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

23

BIRURKRERES &)
B HRURHOREEA NI EHRBA

currencies:
Group
£E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET
HK dollar BT 77,445 106,464
Renminbi AR 154,026 148943
US dollar ETT 29,804 47,94
261,275 303,348

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the

Group has a large number of customers.

The majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The
remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The

ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

BT RREREEATERL -

HRAEERAAEZRFPRE  IUE
SRR L BEEBMHET AR -

AEBABRHENEEHAS+E
NTE  EBNERRINKZES R
B BEBMKEREER 2ER A
mT :

Group
£

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
Below 90 days 0-90 H 231,545 285,099
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 17,548 9,406
Over 180 days 218180 B 12,182 8843
261,275 303,348
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about the counterparty default rates.

The existing counterparties do not have significant default in the past.

As of 30th June 2014, trade receivables of HK$77,371,000 (2013: HK$83,965,000)
were past due but not considered to be impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

23

e MR R

BIRURKRERES &)
WEBBARENE FERUKNEEE
EREBZ2EEBMYTBERLRNBE
BRETHE - RBEZHTBETERE
KHER o

RZZE—MEXAZ+H EHEEK
77,371,000 B (ZF— =4 : 83,965,000
B EEBHELERNE - WEREY
REESIIBERERCHNBELE
F o WEBHREGARRITNAT

Group
£H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEX
Past due by ket
| - 30 days 1-30H 45,388 52957
31 - 60 days 31-60H 11,228 15,444
Over 60 days k60 H 20,755 15,564
77,371 83,965

As of 30th June 2014, trade receivables of HK$3,489,000 (2013: HK$3,395,000)
were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$3,489,000 (2013:
HK$3,395,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate to a
number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult economic
situations. A majority of these trade receivables have been past due by more than
360 days (2013: 360 days).

R-ZZ—NEXA=Z+H EHEKX
3,489,000/ JL(= T — = 4 : 3,395,000
BIL)EEHE - R-E-—MESA=T
A BELEA34890008L(ZE—=
% :3,39500087T) © ERIARENE FIE
WHEERERRERAIMEBER T
BBURP o lERKFABMHE B
@360 (ZF—=F : 3608)
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 ESRURKRERREM@)
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group is as AEEEFHRIGUREREZBH AT -
follows:

Group
58
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
At beginning of the year F1 3,395 2,282
Provision for impairment REER 94 [,101
Exchange difference EH =R — 12
At end of the year FR 3,489 3,395
Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are EUREBEZIBBEFER—BNTH
denominated in the following currencies: A WATHEBRELR
Group
55
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
US dollar e 1,054 1,306
Renminbi ARH 22,158 17,152
23212 18,458
The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is no FBWERE REEEEATERN R
recent history of default on bills receivable. T EENR IR  fER A% -
Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bills of exchange amounting RZZE-MERA=ZTHREEZHE
to approximately HK$7,220,000 (2013: HK$2,320,000) with recourse in exchange NEKHT72000FT(ZT—=F
for cash as at 30th June 2014. The transactions have been accounted for as 2,320,000/ 7T ) O M1 36 R 4E < BRI R AR AL
collateralised bank advances (Note 29). BYRITUEREE - BARSEINR

ERRRTRR(HEE29) -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 fT£ERMIA
Group
£H
2014 2013
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE af BE BB
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TR TET TRT
Held for trading FEHE
— Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note) —IMNERER S 4 (H3E) 152 34,533 570 5014
Note: BiEE
Forward foreign exchange contracts SNE R HAE A
As at 30th June 2014, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts mainly to sell/ RZZE—MFRA=TH  REEHRIMHN
purchase US dollars and purchase Renminbi. The maximum notional principal amounts of these EEHENFEUNE BEXTREARE - 1
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 30th June 2014 were as follows: ZE-MERNA=TARERRBIMNERHE
N BRRREASEMT -
Group
&8
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz THET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars HEBTUEAET 1,131,000 1518114
Sell US dollars for HK dollars HEXTAEANET 15,600 8870
Sell US dollars for Renminbi HEXTUEAARK 1,297,140 653,640
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25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 BERBITER
Group Company
£H AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FERT FET
Cash on hand BeEs 49] 464 — —
Bank balances RIT4EBR 96,787 11,618 105 197
97,278 112,082 105 197
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies: ReERBOIERATIERE REA -
Group Company
£H AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FTAT FTEx FAT
HK dollar BT 10,849 17,238 105 197
Renminbi AR 64,819 71,949 — —
US dollar ET 21,358 22,667 — —
Others Hid 252 228 — —
97,278 112,082 105 197

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

RITESRESARTERZFHNE

BREXA B o

AEB R e RFITHEHLE 63,037,000
TL(ZZ—=4 : 72,389,000 78 7T ) R B
ZBIEF BERECELTRHER
PR 7 o BB B B 2 INEE & 6145 165 o

The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$63,037,000 (2013: HK$72,389,000) are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is

subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
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26 TRADE PAYABLES

A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit

period of 30 to 90 days to the Group.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

26

e MR R

BZRAR
ABRHERBALER S & TAEE
ZEH-RR=tENTR -

BIRATEREAMMT -

Group
£E

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Below 90 days 0-90 B 97,572 118716
91 - 180 days 91-180 35 722
Over 180 days A 180 A 852 914
98,459 120,352

The carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

BHRNR I RAEEE D FERS
WA ERBELN -

Group
£E

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
HK dollar BT 7,573 10,397
Renminbi ARE 27,304 3439
US dollar = 63,515 75,564
Singapore dollar I T 67 =
98,459 120,352
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

27 BREARBRARE

Share capital Bx
Number of
ordinary  Share capital
shares of nominal
HK$0.10 each value
BREE BRAHEE
0.108T 2 HK$’ 000
EERYE TER
Authorised: EERA -
At Ist July 2012, 30th June 2013 and 2014 RZE—Z—F+H-H ZF—=F
R-Z-NERA=1H 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRARRA -
At Ist July 2012, 30th June 2013 and 2014 W-_ZE——%+f—A —T—=F
R-Z-MEXA=1H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium BEEE
HK$'000
TER
At Ist July 2012, 30th June 2013 and 2014 R-_Z——F+A—H —T—=F
R—Z-DmFAA=1H 62,466
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued)

Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Existing Scheme") approved and
adopted on 5th December 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company may
offer eligible employees (including Executive Directors) rights to subscribe for
shares of the Company (the “Share Options”). Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company on 22nd November 2012
(the “Adoption Date"), the Existing Scheme expired on 5th December 2012 was
terminated upon the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme™)
on the Adoption Date. The New Scheme has an expiry of 10 years from the
Adoption Date. Upon the termination of the Existing Scheme, the outstanding
options granted under the Existing Scheme continue to be valid subject to the

provisions of the Existing Scheme.

Movements in the number of Share Options outstanding during the year are as

follows:

27

e MR R

BRARBRAGRE#Z)

BRETE
BER-_ZZ_F+_AARABHE
REAE(RITERETE]D  &AQ
AEFENNEENTESENZEE
B2 EERERBEAD RN 6B E
([BRED REA-T—=F+—A
“+ZB(EMRBOREBEFAE L
BRAN—BRER RZT—ZF+=
Hﬁﬁ@%iﬁﬂ%h%%%%ﬁma
ERBBMERES B ERE
Bl )RR AR I o BREARRE ST 1A S
BRMBEAHTF - RBRITHRER
BlRIER - BERITEBRESERL 2
RITHEERE - RERTBRENEZ
R E L -

AR RAITE CBREZS T -

Number of shares subject to
the Share Options
BRETRBRY

2014 2013

At beginning and at end of the year FNRER

1,500,000 1,500,000
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued) 27 REKRBRAGRE#®)
Share option scheme (Continued) BREE (&)
Details of the options granted under the Existing Scheme outstanding as at 30th RZE-—NEAA=+TARZZ—=F
June 2014 and 30th June 2013 are as follows: NAZTBREERETERL 2 KT
ERERFERIT
Number of shares subject to
Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price the Share Options
R A 3R THEE BRETIRRRE
2014 2013
Employees | 3th February 2008 |2th February 2014 HK$0.78
E& “ZZ\F-A+=A Z—T-ME-A+=H 078%T 1,500,000 1,500,000
1,500,000 1,500,000

Options granted are exercisable within a period of six years within which there is
a total vesting period of three years. Commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the offer date of an option, the relevant grantee may exercise up to
33%, 67% and 100% respectively of the shares comprised in his or her option. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in

cash.

The fair value of these options is to be expensed over the vesting period and no

expense was recognised for the years ended 30th June 2014 and 2013.
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued) 27 REKRBRAGRE#®)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The fair values of options granted under the Existing Scheme determined using the

Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

BRETEH &)
ERA-EANETERABEREER
BAARECBREZATFERT -

| 3th February

2008
—ETN\F
Date of grant of share option RiERERS —A+=AH
Average fair value of share options at date of grant X B R 2 TR TFE HK$0.277
0277 %7

Significant inputs into the valuation model: ERR 2 EXE AR -
Exercise price 1768 HK$0.78
078787
Share price at grant date R B RE HK$0.72
0.7287T
Expected volatility TRE R 66%
Risk-free interest rate ER R BX 1.99%
Expected life of options IR < A A 6 years
6
Expected dividend yield FRERE B 6%

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price retums is

based on the 6-year historical share price movement of the Company prior to the

option grant date.

EREMRERROBLENIROR
BROEE - RGBS ARRED
G AIEE -
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134

28 RESERVES 28 f#fE
(a)  Group (a %
Other reserves
it
Available-
Share Capital forsale  Exchange
option reserve financial ~ fluctuation
reserve (note (i)) Revaluation asset reserve reserve Retained
BE EARE reserve B B Sub-tonl earnings Total
Eae (WH() EfRE HERG XBERE 0 RERN AR
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén Tz Tz Tz Tz Tz TEx  THEn
At Ist July 2012 R=F-—%tf-H 415 408 5,697 617 64267 71414 276368 347782
Profit for the year AEET - - - - = = 2059 2059
Revaluation gain of property, plant % BERRREEAS LN
and equipment on transfer o REtRREERERENF
investrent properties - Gross BB G- 48 — = 1893 = = 1893 = 1,893
Revaluation gain of an avaleble-for-sale A BB A E 2 BfE
financial asset - - - 413 - 413 - 413
Currency translation differences ERER — - - — 7899 7899 - 7899
Dividend paid &S
- 201272013 interim dividend paid -xfz%-=/
“E-CERTRHRE - = = = = (369) (3692)
At 30th June 2013 RZB-Z%~A=1H 415 408 7590 1040 71,166 81619 94735 376354
Representing: %
Proposed 2012/2013 final dividend Bi-2--/-"3-ZFE
RS 3692
Others Aft 108
194735
At Ist July 2013 RZF-Z%tA-A 415 408 759 1,040 72,166 81,619 294735 376,354
Profit for the year AER - - - = = = 34 34|
Reveluation gain of an avalkble-forsele kBB EE 2 B s
financial asset - - - 270 - 270 - 270
Currency translation differences BHES - - - - ©) ®) - )
Dividend paid &S
- 201272013 fral dividend paid -xfz%-=/
“E-ZEEABRE - = = = = (3,692) (36%)
~ 201312014 interim diidend paid -¥f=%-=/
“E-WERPERE - = = = = = (3,692) (369)
At 30th June 2014 RZE-WEF A=TH 415 408 759 1310 72,158 81,88 290,592 N4
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HFEUBHRRMEE
28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 fRiE#E)
(b)  Company (b) A
Other reserves
HftfiE
Contributed Share
surplus option
(note (i) reserve Retained
B4R Bk Sub-total earnings Total
CEAD) EfE MEt RERF wE
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEr TER TEr TET
At Ist July 2012 R-_ZE——F+A—H 62511 415 62,926 270 63,196
Profit for the year AERHH| — — — 10,082 10,082
2012/2013 interim XN=F-=/
dividend paid —E—FFE
RHIR S — — — (3,692) (3.692)
At 30th June 2013 RZT—=F
~NA=1H 6251 | 415 62926 6,660 69,586
Representing: R&:
Proposed 2012/2013 BE =T/
final dividend —T=FE
R E 3692
Others it 2,968
6,660
At IstJuly 2013 R-ZE—=F+A—H 62,511 415 62,926 6,660 69,586
Profit for the year AR A — — — 3,400 3,400
2012/2013 final dividend paid X =F—=/
=B==EFF
REARR B — — — (3,692) (3,692)
2013/2014 interim IN=ZT-=/
dividend paid “T-MEE
REIRS — — — (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2014 RZT—MF
~NA=TH 62,511 415 62,926 2,676 65,602

Annual Report % E # % 2013 /2014 1 35



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

28 RESERVES (Continued)
(b)  Company (Continued)

Notes:

0

Capital reserve of the Group of HK$408,000 (2013: HK$408,000) represents the
aggregate amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited and the difference between the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in

1994 (the “Reorganisation”).

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders' funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the undertying

subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.
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29 BORROWINGS 9 fBE
Group
£E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Current borrowings MEEE
Bank loans due for repayment within one year-secured FR—FREEZ
(Note 3.1(e)) RITER—FER
(PHEE3.1(e)) 53,481 77,640
Bank loans due for repayment after one year which FR—FREREBER
contain a repayment on demand clause-secured (Note 3.1(e)) ERETIGEZ
RITER AR
(BIEE3.1(e)) 233 2,175
Trust receipt loans due for repayment within one year-secured FR—FNERZET
(Note 3.1(e)) WEEH—BHER
(BIEE3.1(e)) 226,652 256,596
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 23) RITRRRRIR B (P 23) 7,220 2,320
Bank overdrafts - secured RITEX - FER 7242 6,207
Total borrowings BmEE 294,828 344938
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 fBEM)
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values, and AREERECREEEEATERS
is denominated in the following currencies: WA T EEREN
Group
£E
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
HK dollar BT 180,336 234,735
Renminbi AR 53318 66,006
US dollar XL 60,227 42537
Euro BRI 947 1,660
294,828 344,938
At 30th June 2014, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable within RZZE-—MERA=TH AEEHR
five years. TEFHERAFTAERE -

REERHABREERENGXFE
REFBARRCEREESHENT -

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan

agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

Group
£E

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Within | year —&R 294,595 344938
Between | to 2 years —EEMF 233 =
Between 2 to 5 years MEERF — —
294,828 344938
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 fBE@#@)
The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the weighted REEARRBASECERHA XS
average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows: R R AETFHREMT :
Group
EL ]

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TRT

— at fixed rates —EEH % 289,681 331,278

— at floating rates s e 5,147 13,660

294,828 344938

2014 2013

HKS RMB usD EUR HKS RMB UsD EUR
Br AR® Xx Bz Bn ARE® X B&:

Trust receipt loans EREEER 243% —  224% —  246% - 228% —
Short-term and long-term bank loans "2 A R R HIIR1TE 266%  809% — I56%  232%  820% —  256%
Bank advances for discounted bills BORRREBR — 6.73% - — — 7.11% — —
Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 16), RITEFAREEHRINNE - HER
leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17) and investment properties (Note |8) EE (M) HELMRTFRRE
of the Group. (FEEE17) RIRE Y E (KI5 18) RER -
The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted A REZRERER TRITME
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bills receivable and the RITBFEINRBERCORITEK - B
related proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills BERGRAREHRERERER
receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings respectively at the balance sheet REMERAREERAREZE Sk
date. Yok & e R i (P 5 23) R HAfE & -
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30 DEFERRED TAXATION

30 EEFE

Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary differences under the BLEMEHIERARNEEAREARE
liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance ErEmmnRENaRERERER
sheet date. AE -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right EREEARTENERENEEESR
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred BERERERE  BETMGHIR
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined R—BIBEE - BRI ETEREHERE

after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

HEEEMREE Bt ABBEER
THEENEERBERAIE :

Group
£

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 5,571 4924
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE (5,998) (4,457)
(427) 467

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

BRETHEHERENFEHMT :

Group
£H

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET TRT

At beginning of the year F4 467 28
(Charged)/credited to consolidated income statement (Note 10) Ak (MR)/

AT A(HEE10) (894) 369

Exchange difference ERER — 70

At end of the year FR (427) 467
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30 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30 EEWE M)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking FRNEEHBEERAGZ#BH(EE—
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as B E < &R SERT) T -
follows:
Deferred tax liabilities: ELEHEAR
Fair value gains on
investment properties Accelerated tax depreciation Total
REMEAFERE MERFHE ag
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TAR TER TER ThR TR
At beginning of the year E4) 1,049 1,000 5921 6,007 6970 7007
Charged/(credited) to income statement  FEUREEF MR/ (FTA) 56 24 189 (134) 750 (110)
Exchange difference EHER — 25 — 48 = 73
At end of the year £X 1,610 1,049 6,110 592 7,720 6970
Deferred tax assets: BEHREE -
Decelerated tax
Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
R HBER HERBRE 27
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKF000 HK$000  HKFO0O  HK$'000  HK$000
Tén T TExr TEr TR TEr  TEn  TEn
At beginning of the year £ 4066 3179 1,047 1,356 234 2500 1487 7,035
Credited/(charged) to income statement  ER&KETA/ (1) 175 807 - (309) (319 239 (144) 259
Exchange difference EiZR - 80 — - — 63 — 143
At end of the year FX 44| 4066 1,047 1047 2,005 2314 7293 7437
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30

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the extent that
the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
At 30th June 2014, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward
against future taxable income amounted to approximately HK$172,913,000 (2013:
HK$107,182,000). These tax losses have no expiry date except that approximately
HK$2,867,000 (2013: HK$1,484,000) will expire from 2015 to 2018. The potential
deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised

amounted to approximately HK$28,775,000 (2013: HK$17,811,000).

As at 30th June 2014, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to profits earned by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$120,606,000 (2013: HK$90,910,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 30th June 2014 and 2013, the Company had no material deferred tax assets or

liabilities.
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31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3 RERERER
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from () BHAENEESRBFELHE
operations: HEZ
Group
%8
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

TRT TRT

Profit before income tax 754 A4 A 17,649 36,002
Adjustments for: FHEBIER -
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9% BERSEITE 16,799 17,592
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment —HEME  BEREREZ
B/ () 3 0
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights —HELH R T A
B 55 714 595
— Unrealised fair value loss on derivative financial instruments ~ —fF{EEEITESRBMIA Y
held for trading AERATFEBE 29,937 1,947
— Fair value gains on investment properties —REMEN A TFERER (27,234) (18,670)
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables — B SRR EERE 94 [,101
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of inventories —FEREREE,/(BE) 319 (197)
— Impairment of deposit for acquisition of properties —WBMEZERE — 9,051
— Write-off of other receivables — H fth FE T AR 86 596
— Loss on disposal of a subsidiary —HE-MBRARERE 32 -
— Interest income —FIEMA (208) (335)
— Interest expense —FMEBEZH 11,330 11,230
— Exchange differences —ERER - 5,141
Changes in working capital: HEREEE
— Inventories -F5& 18,036 (19,744)

— Trade and bills receivables, other receivables,

prepayments and deposits

- BIRUF R ERRRE
HA YR - B

Rz 37,694 (43,804)

— Trade payables, other payables and deposits received —B RN - Bt
and accruals KEWEI € kERRER (21,701) 13,520
Cash generated from operations REFBEEZHR S 83,578 14,024
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31  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 3 RERERERMS)

(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of property, (b)

plant and equipment comprise:

EHEEHETRERAN  HEYE
B R B -

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

T THET

Net book amount (Note 16) REFEMEE6) 108 120
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERZELZ

(Note 8) (B1#8), Mz (e s) @31) |

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BE RXEMER 77 121

(c)  Disposal of a subsidiary (c) HE—HBRA

On 31st October 2013, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of
its entire 54.6% equity interests in Crown Hero Limited (“Crown Hero") to
an independent third party, who owns the remaining 45.4% equity interests
in Crown Hero. After the disposal, the Group does not hold any interests in

Crown Hero.
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31  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 3 RERERERMS)

(c)  Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued) © HE-WELE)
Details in respect of the disposal of this subsidiary are as follows: HE MM ELRRMNFENT
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposed of HEHFEE
— Other receivables — H fth e R 82
— Cash and bank balances —RERRITER 51
— Other payables and accruals —HtENRRERER (128)
5
Less: Non-controlling interests ISR 27
32
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7) HEME A R EE (T 7) (32)
Cash considerations (HK$ 1) ReRE(ET) —
Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiary disposed HEMBARNRE KRS (51)
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary HENBARIMNFERE R (51
(d)  For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash (d) REEHEEREXNE  HERE
equivalents include the following: EEFABLTER -
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEr FET
Cash and bank balances (Note 25) Re RFITHEAR (T 25) 97,278 112,082
Bank overdrafts (Note 29) RITHEX (PHF29) (7.242) (6,207)
90,036 105,875
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32 COMMITMENTS 32 AE
(a)  Capital commitments () EFFAE
At 30th June 2014, the Group had the following capital commitments for RZZE-—MFEA=1AH F£5E
addition of property, plant and equipment: BBENE  BERRE2EREE
m

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEr TET

Contracted but not provided for BEROBRER 7,538 748

(b)  Commitment under operating leases (b) FEHEFAE
As at 30th June 2014, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease RZT—MESA=+AH " F5E
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and ARTSIHREIE B L Rig
buildings as follows: FZIAHBERERE 2 R KK
HERRK -

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET

Not later than one year —FR 3,441 4,628

Later than one year and not later than five years —FREDMERAF 625 1218

Later than five years L& 213 486

4279 6,332
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 BREALRS
The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the AL B Good Benefit Limited (£ B E
British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The remaining THEFMKL 2 AR ES - HEER
46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares of Good Benefit NABNZATZB=RE H#HzA
Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the Company. DT ARELREREZIFA ° Good
Benefit Limited BE RS2 BEHAL
Az BHEEERRA -
The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group ARAMAESARRAREEZEE
and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note |5 to the financial EBAER  HFAFMERGEaHBR
statements. e ARE
The Directors are of the opinion that no other material related party transactions EERRAEERAFENTELEE
had been undertaken by the Group during the year. HEARBEALRS °
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 34 BARERAT
The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the British EERRARAREZERA AR Good
Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company. Benefit Limited (FE 232/ fia & B B =L M A 1L
ZRT]) e
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35 FEMEBAT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2014: RZF-—MESA=+H " KRFAIZE
EMBREMT :
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name TR EEh BRIRAR Principal activites ~ ADQFHEZ
=L R EANER BRA/EMER IREHK BERRFEIL
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited HERLES IE REER
(Note by (FizED)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$93,200000  Manufacture and sale of colorants 100
Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000/87C and compounded plastic resins
REREBRBRE enterprise ERHEECHR
BRAF 3 R YRl
*SNEBELER
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEMBAR M)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of

operation and

* kind of legal entity

paid up share capital/

registered capital

equity held by
the Company

Name SRS B CRITRAR Principal activites ~ AQFHEZ
#8 REAER BRAE/ERES TREK BRRFEIL
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited BB ordinary shares of colorants and compounded
BAEEXERAT HK$ ! each plastic resins
500,000 & @k BERBREERHR
B BT R YRl
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture of 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited B ordinary shares of engineering plastic
RETIZEHABRAR HK$! each products
2,000,000 & @A RETR
BR1ET PREmM
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited oy ordinary shares of property holding
REZEBRHERAA HK$! each REEKRK
1,000 & 3@ SEERUES
FRIET
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ | each (note c)
500,000 SRR 1E
BIERER | BT
(Bf&E o)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) BB ordinary shares of BEBRBRE
Limited HK$ ! each
BRABBRR(BR) 500,000 & &%
BRAR S IBT
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 87T colorants and compounded
LEREBRR enterprise plastic resins
ARAF e RENHEEBT
*SNEBELER REA=E Rl
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

TEMBAR(E)

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name B R i B CRITRHR Principal activites ~ AATEFEHZ
#8 R EAER BRAE/ERES IREH BRREXEIL
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 10,500,000 % 7T colorants and compounded
EEREBRREM enterprise plastic resins
BRAF e BERHESEBT
*SNEBELRE REEA K
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
REREFER AT ) ordinary shares of plastic products
HK$ | each BER
5,000 & % HELBEM
BRIET
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC US$200,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastics (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd. ~ * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T plastic products
RETREEHR enterprise EETREVBER
(LB)BRAT 5
*NEBELRE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing The PRC US$100,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 100,000 € 7T compounded plastic resins
EERERE enterprise BEECH
BRAF e K& &R R
*NEBELRE
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Hong Kong 1,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
(Hong Kong) Limited 5 ordinary shares of plastic products
BRATERER(ER) HK$ ! each BEETIREBER
BRAT 1,000,000 & A
BRIET
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEMBAR M)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of

operation and

* kind of legal entity

paid up share capital/

registered capital

equity held by
the Company

Name SRS B CRITRAR Principal activites ~ AQFHEZ
£ R EAER BRAE/ERES IEXY BRREXESH
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T colorants and compounded
EFIRETEBRE enterprise plastic resins
AR i HENHEEBER
*INEBELE R YRl
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing The PRC RMB 10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R #& BEBRBRE
BMmREERE enterprise
el NG R
*INEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 % 7T BEBRBRE
LiBRBEER enterprise
FHEEERAF R
*INEBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Hong Kong 10,000 Manufacture and sale of 85
Company Limited BB ordinary shares of biodegradable plastic
RERREHARAR] HK$ | each materials
10,000 & A% RERHE
Bk BT RREBRE
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastics (Dongguan) Co, Ltd. ~ * wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 7T plastic products
RERTIIRREH enterprise BETIRZBEM
el NG e
*INEBELE
Shanghai Coltec Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T compounded plastic resins
LiBEEEY enterprise EEEEHEK
EL Y- YNG i =il
*INEBELE
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEMBAR M)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name FMAL ERTREBE Principal activites ~ ADQFHEZ
#8 REAER BRAE/ERES TREK BRRFEIL
Dongguan Coltec Plastic The PRC HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 87T compounded plastic resins
REEBREBH enterprise BEEGHK
BHARAH P E Rl
*ONEBERE
NHH Worldwide Logistics Hong Kong 1,000,000 Logistics Service 84
Limited B ordinary shares of Wi AR 7%
BERRMABRAF HK$ | each
1,000,000 & 3B A%
FRIET
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture of engineering 76.2
Materials (Shanghai) Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T plastic products
RITEZBE(LE) enterprise BETREBER
BRAF 3
*NEBEALE
Tianjin Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co., Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 % 7T BEBRBRE
RERE R enterprise
BEARAH i
*SNEBELE
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Investment holding 100
(previously known as BE ordinary shares of REERK
Letibe Limited) HK$!| each
BRETHERRAR 10,000 &
(A% : REJBRAR]) Bk 1B
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ The PRC RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 AR BEEZBRH
BEMNTmRETERRE enterprise
ARAT i
*INEBELE
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

@

()

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability companies. All

subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by the
Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
(“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or surplus assets of
NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or vote at any general

meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the holders of
the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an aggregate cash consideration

of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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B —— ~ Five-Year Financial Summary
REHBHE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years are as AEERBENEMBREEBF 2 XE  BE
follows: REBEMT

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$O00  HKPO00  HK$000
TER TR TR TAT TAT

Results #i5
Profit attributable to equity holders NG EY A

of the Company il 3,24 22,059 1365 31,102 28443
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BERE 953,357 1,002,768 904,731 948,748 812944
Total liabilities BfERE (460,037)  (504609)  (433950)  (484037) (386,104
Non-controlling interests IR (21,461) (22419) (23613) (22,526) (20831)
Capital and reserves attributable to NEIREEN

the Company's equity holders B 471,859 475,740 447,168 442,185 406,009

——
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED RETERDAA

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFME .2 HRE )

Hong Kong Office: BERMEE

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre, 6

10 Wo Shing Street, HRNIK

Fo Tan, New Territories, REEHT 105K

Hong Kong BETERL6EIE

Tel: (852) 2693 1663 B 0 (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877 BE : (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk A34E © http:/iwww.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk BT ¢ info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory: BRI

No. 9 Dai Shun Street, B

Tai Po Industrial Estate, RN

Tai Po, New Territories, KB TED

Hong Kong RIEHT9 5%

Tel: (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772 B 5 1 (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772

Fax: (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017 {EE : (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

Dongguan Factory: RERL

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town, i AR

Dongguan City, BRE

Guangdong Province, e

The People's Republic of China BHEREIXR

Tel: (86) 769-8558 8755  Zip: 523940 BiE 0 (86) 769-8558 8755  ESEUARSR ¢ 523940

Fax: (86) 769-8558 1756 EE : (86) 769-8558 1756
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Guangzhou Office: BNHBERE
A1806, Center Plaza, SEYNE
No. 16! Linhe Road West, BN
Tianhe District, KA &
Guangzhou, WA 161 5%
The People’s Republic of China R BB 45 A 1806
Tel: (86) 20-3831 0226  Zip: 510620 E 5 ¢ (86) 20-3831 0226 EHURSR : 510620
Fax: (86) 20-3831 0223 BE : (86) 20-3831 0223
Shanghai Office: LBRER
Unit E, 16th Floor, REARAME
Zhao Feng Universe Building, Lgm
No. 800 Zhongshan West Road, B LT 1800 5%
Shanghai, KERIEKE
The People’s Republic of China |6 EERE
Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200235 B iE 0 (86) 21-6440 0997  EHRE 1 200235
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977 BE : (86) 21-6440 0977
Shanghai Factory: LRt
No. 8100, Songze Ave. HREARAME
Qingpu Industrial Zone, Ligm
Shanghali, EHRIERER
The People’s Republic of China #)% K38 81005%
Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201707 FE ¢ (86) 21-6921 3333 EEURS : 201707
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555 BE : (86) 21-6921 5555
Qingdao Factory: BB/
Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone, EYNEP
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao, BEERMNEERMRAE R
The People’s Republic of China BRBMNERIXE
Tel: (86) 532-8727 3100 Zip: 266300 BTHE 1 (86) 532-8727 3100 EHURSE : 266300
Fax: (86) 532-8727 3110 BE : (86) 532-8727 3110
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AEERE

Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No.2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026 Zip: 61005
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

[/F & 2/F, J-7 Building, Yongquan Industrial Park,

Guankou Town, Jimei District,
Xiamen City, Fujian Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 592-6093211  Zip: 361023
Fax: (86) 592-6093600

Tianjin Office:

Room 1616, No. 349 Nanjing Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 22-8752 8026  Zip: 300073
Fax: (86) 22-8752 8109

REBHBERE

HEE A REFE

79114 B AR i

BRILE =B =%

EH=TEE

BEE2919 5%

EiE  (86) 28-8328 5026 EHURSE 1 610051
BE : (86) 28-8328 5126

BP9t

FEARAME

BREEEMT

SEREDHE
BRIEER)TBE(IER21E)

FiE 0 (86) 592-609321 1 BERSE ¢ 361023
BE : (86) 592-6093600

REWSE

HEE A REAE

XEmiFHE

BRE49FR 1616 F

F5E 1 (86) 22-8752 8026  EBEURS : 300073
EH : (86) 22-8752 8109
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